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The Group recorded total revenue of HK$622,854,894 in the financial
year of 2010-2011, 6% lower than those of HK$663,261,352 in the
last year. The Group recorded a loss of HK$31,777,948 in this
financial year, 9% lesser than those of HK$34,931,652 in the last
year.

The Group’s two main lines of businesses are the original design
manufacturing products (“ODM") business and the electronic
handheld products business. In this financial year, the electronic
handheld products business contributed 40.3% to the Group’s total
revenue. As for the ODM business, the contribution of this business
segment in this financial year was 59.7% of the Group’s total
revenue.

In analyzing the Group’s revenue by geographical areas, Asia is the
Group's key market, including Hong Kong (14.6%) and other Asian
markets (68.8%).

The Group is undergoing a business transformation from the
development and production of consumer products to that of high
value-added industrial products. It will take some time to accumulate
a new customer base during such a business transformation. Though
there are signs of early success with this new business direction, these
are not yet reflected in the financial results. The Group’s businesses
are still in a period of transition.

There are three main areas of focus for the future development of the
Group:

(1) Improve the cost-effectiveness of production: As the Group has
shifted its focus to the development of industrial products in
recent years, the volume of production has been scaled back.
With a view of achieving better utilization of manufacturing
facilities and improve the cost-effectiveness, the Group plans to
further develop and expand the business of sub-contract
manufacturing of modules such as touch panel and
telecommunication modules. Module manufacturing will
enable the Group to raise the level of automation on the shop
floor, thereby moving away from the labour-intensive mode of
production in the past and help strengthening a competitive
production facility within the Group.

S (EB)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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BREBERBIBZBWADH
ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Electronic Handheld Products
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Broaden the customer base of the existing products: In the past
few years, the Group has deployed resources in the
development of industrial products such as intelligent retail
systems and e-logistics products, and has opened up markets
in Europe, Japan and Southeast Asia. The Group expects to
enhance its market position through the continual optimization
of its product line, the broadening of its customer base, the
mastery of relevant domain knowledge and the strengthening
of the business relationship with its local partners.

Enter the China market: As the consuming power in China and
hence the consumer market is expected to grow steadily in the
next three to five years, the Group plans to re-enter the China
market. Based on our technology and experience, the Group
plans to develop products in the areas of e-education, digital
home and e-healthcare. Under the Framework Agreement on
Hong Kong/Guangdong Cooperation between the two
Governments, the Group will focus on establishing a strong
presence in Guangdong as a base for future penetration into
the rest of the mainland market.

2011 BFEIHRE Annual Report



ERHKE (B)
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

BmEtEI B 2WADH
ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET
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The People’s Republic of China 3.3%
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REBKRE FINAL DIVIDEND

BEES(ESE) FTEZOERIIREAEZE  The Board of Directors (“Board”) does not recommend any payment
TE-—FZRA=T-HLEFEZRBRE  of final dividend (2010: Nil) to the shareholders for the year ended
(ZZ—TF |- 31st March, 2011.

N8 o APPRECIATION

AAERRESZ AEKRE-FF - HE  On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank all our shareholders,
ERBITHG  SHMMZEREARNEBEN  customers, suppliers and bankers for their continual support. | would
TE O OTBHSEIBEZFHIERAEZR  alo like to extend my appreciation to all the staff for their dedicated

EBAMEE &R/ - work and their contribution throughout the year.
AEEEWm By order of the Board

EE Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP
EEEELATHL Chairman

BB —E——FxXA=-+NH Hong Kong, 28th June, 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue of the financial year is HK$622,854,894, which is 6%
lower than HK$663,261,352 of the previous year. During the year
under review, electronic handheld products business and original
design manufacturing (“ODM") business recorded revenue of
HK$250,897,944 and HK$371,956,950 respectively.

Operating loss for the year is HK$29,885,895 (2010:
HK$21,965,639). After charging finance costs of HK$0 and other
expenses of HK$1,600,000 (2010: finance costs HK$24,450 and
other expenses HK$0), loss before tax is HK$31,485,895 (2010:
HK$21,990,089). After taking into account the taxation, loss for the
year is HK$31,777,948 (2010: HK$34,931,652).

On the statement of financial position side, inventories have
decreased by HK$9,251,408 to HK$116,062,915 and trade
receivables increased by HK$5,807,084 to HK$90,424,344.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$163,899,986 which was 19% lower than
HK$201,342,840 of the previous year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

On 31st March, 2011, the bank balances and cash (including bank
deposits) were HK$163,899,986 in total, which was HK$37,442,854
or 19% lower than those of twelve months ago.

As at 31st March, 2011, the gearing ratio, defined as total bank
borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities was 0%. The interest
expenses is HK$0 during the period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2011, the contingent liabilities of the Group were
HK$4,895,000 (2010: HK$4,907,618).

2011 BFEIHRE Annual Report
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY
POLICY

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese Yen, United States
dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury policy of the Group is to
manage significant currency exposure and minimize currency risk
whenever it may have material impact to the Group. During the
twelve months period, the Group manages its foreign exchange
exposure caused by the appreciation of Renminbi by entering into
hedging forward contracts. The Group does not engage in any
interest rate or currencies speculations.

ELECTRONIC DICTIONARY

Business Review

The SBU (strategic business unit) has experienced a decline both in its
sales turnover and gross profit in the financial year of 2010-2011 as
compared with the last financial year. The SBU is facing the challenge
of increases in material and operating costs owing to the continuous
appreciation of Japanese Yen and Renminbi.

The uncertainty of the global economy has continued to depress the
consumer-spending sentiment. The sluggish consumer demand has
inevitably impacted the business performance of the SBU. The
emergence of integrated consumer electronic products that contain
e-dictionary and basic e-learning applications also hindered the pace
of business recovery of the SBU.

Since the worldwide financial tsunami at the end of 2008, the SBU
has adjusted its business strategy to put more emphasis on the
development of medium to low end products that were less likely to
be affected during the economic downturn. Though the SBU could
see the up trend on sales demand for this product segment, the
contribution to the overall SBU's gross profit margin is not significant.

The SBU, in recent years, has put a lot of marketing efforts in Vietnam
and has achieved a significant and positive business growth in the
past two years. Nevertheless, many new competitors have also
entered the Vietnam market in 2010 and price competition has been
getting keener and tougher.

S (EB)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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ELECTRONIC DICTIONARY (continued)

Outlook

Though there are signs of economy recovery in some of the Asian
markets, consumer confidence is still weak and uncertain. In response
to the volatile market conditions and rapid demand changes, the SBU
will continue to monitor the markets closely and adapt its product
and market strategies accordingly.

To minimize the pressure on gross profit margins, the SBU will strive
to continually enhance its operational efficiency and control the
product development and material costs. To alleviate the adverse
impact on material supply and component price owing to March
2011 earthquake and tsunami in Japan, the SBU will broaden its
supply base and continue to monitor the performance of its supply
chain and adjust the procurement strategy if necessary.

The SBU will also continue to work hard in expanding its customer
base in various markets. With a view of lessening the threat posed by
the emergence of integrated consumer products, the SBU will explore
the e-learning markets by introducing a new e-learning platform and
uniquely designed products that would have learning features and
applications targeting the student and young executive customer
segments in particular.

ORIGINAL DESIGN MANUFACTURING

Business Review

The gradual recovery of business of the SBU that started in the
previous financial year continued to the present financial year 2010
2011 with a satisfactory increase in profit. The sales and profit of the
SBU, however, have shown signs of slowing down in the second half
financial year owing to the changes in the product mix of the SBU. In
particular, the previously fast-growing sales of eBook readers in the
US markets has encountered a sudden decline owing to the
availability of eBook applications on many popular standard platforms
such as smart phones and tablet personal computers. In the face of
such fierce competition, the selling price of our eBook readers has
been cut.

2011 BFEIHRE Annual Report
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ORIGINAL DESIGN MANUFACTURING
(continued)

Business Review (continued)

Working closely with our valued customer in Japan, the electronic
stationary product line is one of the major continuous growth areas
of the SBU. One of the new ODM products, “Digital Name Card
Holder”, was launched in Japan in the middle of 2010 and has been
well received by the market with stable sales throughout the second
half of the financial year 2010-2011. This product has a unique
feature of capturing and storing the name card images using the
built-in CMOS (Complementary Metal Oxide Semiconductor) sensor
camera in both image and text forms. The latter is generated
automatically by the OCR (Optical Character Recognition) software in
the device.

WND (Wireless Navigation Device) with 3G data communication
capability for use with real time navigation information services was
also launched in Japan in the middle of the financial year 2010-2011.
This device, together with the unique value-added services offered by
our customer, a leading navigation service provider in Japan, will
create new demands amongst drivers there.

Outlook

The SBU expects to penetrate the Japan market further in the coming
years, as many of our Japanese customers are enjoying stable
business growth, and as our subsidiary company in Japan is doing
good communication work in correctly understanding the customers'’
requirements and in matching our research and development and
manufacturing capabilities in Hong Kong and in China. The risk for
the SBU, however, may be the over reliance on the Japan market. As
both the consumer and industrial sectors of the Japan economy may
be in decline after the natural disaster in March 2011, this may
weaken the business growth of the SBU in the coming year.

The SBU continues to develop new electronic stationary products and
novel consumer products for the Japan market. Product design and
development for these two products are in progress with market
launch planned in the financial year of 2011-2012. Other projects are
under discussion.

S (EB)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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ORIGINAL DESIGN MANUFACTURING
(continued)

Outlook (continued)

A brand new ODM product for the handheld terminal is being
developed for another Japanese customer, one of the leading
companies in POS (Point-of-Sale) system with handheld terminals.
Shipment is planned in the first quarter of the financial year 2011-
2012. With its unique wireless connectivity, our new handheld
terminal will help reduce the cost of setting up wireless systems in
retail shops and restaurants. Stable growth of this business is
expected.

Work on the development of a new product related to the live video
broadcast through the internet has been kicked off. This is for a new
customer in Japan and the product will be launched in the year of
2011,

The SBU understands that quality in design, manufacturing and
service to customers are important in serving the Japan market. In line
with the SBU’s consistent strategy for the continual focus on the
Japan market, measures for enhancing quality are being taken with
priority in the areas of human resources, organization and control
systems.

PERSONAL COMMUNICATION PRODUCTS

Business Review

In the financial year 2010-2011, the revenue of the SBU has dropped
slightly with improvement in the business performance as compared
with the previous financial year. This improvement is due to the drop
in sales of the low profit margin ODM business together with the
increase in sales of POSPDA (Point-of-Sale Personal Digital Assistant)
products that have higher gross profit margins.

2011 BFEIHRE Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (continued)
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PERSONAL COMMUNICATION PRODUCTS
(continued)

Business Review (continued)

As for the POSPDA business, the products have begun to find market
acceptance with sales growing steadily, in particular in the second
half of the financial year. In view of the market acceptance, the SBU
has also developed a series of POSPDA products for different sectors
of industry for further market penetration. As for the ODM business,
our revenue dropped in the financial year 2010-2011 as the sales of
one of our major clients in the European and US markets has been
unsatisfactory. On the other hand, the SBU has invested in the
development of a new product line of Tracking Products, targeting
both industrial and personal customers by making use of our
expertise and experience in the design of GPS (Global Positioning
System) products.

In conclusion, despite the decrease in the sales in the financial year of
2010-2011, it is expected that the increase in the POSPDA business,
the new ODM projects and the new product line will result in a better
performance in the future.

Outlook

The POSPDA business will continue to grow in the financial year of
2011-2012. New ODM projects being developed will bring in more
revenue. Together with the new products to be launched for the new
product line of the Tracking Products, the revenue of the SBU in the
financial year of 2011-2012 is expected to grow.

The focus of the POSPDA business is in developing new markets and
new products for different sectors of industry. Penetrating the
American and South-east Asian markets and acquiring new
customers in the logistics and retail industries are key to the growth
of the POSPDA business. The ODM business in the financial year of
2011-2012 will expand into the M2M (Machine-to-Machine)
communication products and communication module businesses. As
for the Tracking Product, the SBU will aim at securing a number of
service partners to ensure the successfully launching of this product
line.

S (EB)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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PERSONAL COMMUNICATION PRODUCTS
(continued)

Outlook (continued)

The development of industrial communication products and ODM
business have been the business focus of the SBU, and the key
success factors are quality products, professional technical support
and after-sale services. The SBU is committed to enhance the product
quality and service level in the financial year of 2011-2012.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31st March, 2011, the Group has on its payroll 223 (2010: 244)
employees in Hong Kong, 2,105 (2010: 2,360) employees in the
People’s Republic of China and 12 (2010: 13) employees in Japan,
representing a decrease of 9%, 11% and 8% respectively as
compared with prior year. In addition to salary remuneration and
usual fringe benefits such as annual leave, medical insurance and
provident fund, the Group also provides Share Incentive Plan for
executive directors and senior staff.

At the beginning and in the interim of every financial year, the
Group’s management holds Business Planning Meetings with its
senior staff to review together the Group’s past performance, as well
as to discuss with them the Group’s future strategic plans, policies
and developments. After publication of the Group’s results
announcement, staff communication sessions are held to keep
employees abreast of the Group’s developments and also to facilitate
two-way dialogue between the management and all level of
employees. The management actively communicates with employees
by means of “GSL SMS"” through intranet, staff newsletters and
emails to ensure free flow of information across different staff levels
and to promote information and experience sharing. All staff are
encouraged to express their views and feelings and to propose
suggestions on different aspects. Employee satisfaction surveys are
conducted regularly to help the senior management gauge various
concerns of the staff and formulate appropriate solutions accordingly.
A good promotion system is in place to identify the potential staff
and help employees prepare for their career prospects.
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EMPLOYEES RELATIONS (continued)

The Group has organized a number of in-house training programmes
to continuously develop the capabilities of all levels of the staff.
Moreover, employees are encouraged to take outside programmes to
acquire additional knowledge and upgrade their skills. Staff may be
nominated for attending selected training schemes with full
sponsorship. Employees who are interested in other unselected
courses may still apply for the full or partial subsidies through the
Group’s Education Subsidizing Scheme.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group's concern for the environment begins with its own
operations. The Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong participated the
centralized automatic refuse collection system and lighting control
system. The Group encourages the adoption of recycled or
environmentally responsible materials as well as paper and toner
cartridges recycling. Besides, the Group requests any relevant parts or
materials delivered, provided and/or supplied by the suppliers shall
comply with and observe Directive of the European Parliament and of
the Council on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous
substances in electrical and electronic equipment (RoHS), Directive of
the European Parliament and of the Council on waste electrical and
electronic equipment (WEEE), Directive of the European Parliament
and of the Council on registration, evaluation, authorisation and
restriction of chemicals (REACH) and other standards.

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the ISO9001 Quality
Management System and ISO14001 Environmental Management
System have been combined since 2000. On-site surveillance
assessment is conducted regularly by independent assessors to ensure
compliance and continual improvement. Internal audit teams have
been organised to perform compliance audit on an on-going basis.

As to care for the Community, the Group participated in “Blood
Donation and Bone Marrow Registration Campaign” launched by
Red Cross at Hong Kong Science Park in March 2011 and we
encourage our colleagues to become donors and give a helping hand
to the patients who are in need of blood or bone marrow to sustain
their lives.
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The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance practices with a view to protecting the interests of all of
its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code") throughout the financial year ended 31st March,
2011 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules™).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code"”) on terms no less exactly than the required standard
set out in the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors, all directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31st
March, 2011.

THE BOARD

Currently, the Board of the Company comprises ten directors,
including seven executive directors, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson
Jp (Chairman), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director), Mrs.
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Dr.
Fok Ting Yeung, James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith; and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki,
Samuel MH, Jp, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man,
Jason. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2011, there has
been no change as to the composition of the Board.

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of regular
board meetings are served to all directors at least fourteen days
before the meetings to ensure that all directors are given the
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent out to all directors at least three days in advance to ensure that
all directors are given the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings. Draft minutes of board meetings
are circulated to all directors for comment within a reasonable time
prior to confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.
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THE BOARD (continued)

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2011, four board
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each director is

R

set out below:

HEEZ X
Number of
meetings attended

HITES Executive Directors

BREEATHt (FHF) Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman) 4/4
EBRE (FEHEKHE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) 4/4
BEEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4
KAFE Kazuhiro Otani 4/4
=FHE Lee Koon Hung 4/4
EEF* Fok Ting Yeung, James 4/4
FEER Luk Chui Yung, Judith 4/4
BNEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

RkHumes, rpmt Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp 4/4
{a] Bl A, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 3/4
F®X Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
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The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies and
policies of the Group, reviewing and monitoring its financial
performance, including preparing and approving financial statements
and overseeing operational matters of the management, considering
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting function and their
training programmes and budget. Daily business operations and
administration functions are delegated to the management.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, sufficient
number of independent non-executive directors have been appointed
with one of them has appropriate accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Board has received annual confirmation
of independence from the independent non-executive directors as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp and Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian is the
wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp. The relationship between Mr. Lee
Koon Hung and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith is husband and wife. Save
for these relationships, there are no other financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Currently, the Company has set up five committees including
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Executive Management Committee and Share Option
Committee. Each committee is delegated with various responsibilities
by the Board in assisting the Board in the discharge of its duties and
to administer particular aspects of the Group’s activities. Details of the
role and function of each committee are summarized below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Managing Director are Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively. The roles of
the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly segregated and
are not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman’s principal
responsibility is to manage the Board and the Managing Director’s
principal responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. In
particular, the Chairman is responsible for the Group’s corporate
planning and financial management whereas the Managing Director
is responsible for the overall marketing and sales strategies of the
Group's products.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The term of appointment of each of the non-executive directors are
fixed for a specific term, and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996. The
Company has adopted terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.1.3 of the Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
an executive Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong
Kon Man, Jason.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure in relation to remuneration of directors and senior
management of the Company. It schedules to meet at least once a
year for reviewing the remuneration of the executive directors and
senior management of the Company and assessing performance of
executive directors. In determining and approving the remuneration
of directors and senior management of the Company, the
Remuneration Committee shall consider factors such as market
competitiveness, individual performance and achievement and
company and divisional profitability.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2011 for approving the salary
adjustment for executive directors and senior management of the
Company. The attendance of each member is set out below:

HESBRE
Number of
meetings attended

EERATHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson s 171
B &K Ho Kwok Shing, Harris il
T8 Wong Kon Man, Jason il
BEREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

BEREZEEEN - NANANERIL - ARFER
BFA2FAMRICIIKABEREZESEMN
BEHE RNEXZEERERE=E8
MFHTEER RS Esuns xvnL(F
REEEERE) MBEREERERIEE -

ERZEE T EREEERMBYNER
MU BERSRILFEAREZ 2B RN
(BREADAESA R BERBMESED
ER BTEERRERREOEN URET
FEINEIREREBRENEERRE)
KONEREA A I E L 2 RANME

BE-ZZ——F=ZA=1+—-HLBHEEE
N BREZEESCHRITNASE  UERK
SEMEMANSHTREAREE B LTE
RNBEZZRG EREERMBEERER
YRIBRAEBETHEEREMNBR
Ble BB ZHEERMT ¢

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company has
adopted terms of reference in compliance with code provision C.3.3
of the Code. Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki,
Samuel MH, Jp (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok
Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
providing an independent and professional advice on financial
reporting, and evaluating the effectiveness of internal control
(including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget) and the sufficiency of
external and internal audits.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2011, the Audit
Committee has held four meetings to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted, discuss and evaluate internal control
procedures, risk management and financial reporting matters. It also
ensures that the Group complies with all applicable laws and
regulations. The attendance of each member is as follows:

HEEBARHY
Number of
meetings attended

BNkHymsgs, cTmt Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp 4/4
17 B F% Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
FT#X Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

After each Audit Committee meeting, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee will present a report to the Board which highlights any
significant issues discussed in the meeting for the Board's information
and consideration. To assist the Audit Committee to carry out its
duties, the Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions in
improving business operations and performing internal audit. Internal
audit reports will be directly sent to the Audit Committee periodically.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established in 2001 to help
directors identify and assess business risks. Corresponding strategies
are formulated and risk management system is implemented to
prevent and manage market and operational risks.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established in 2005 with
written terms of reference to operate as a general management
committee under the authority of the Board. Currently, the Executive
Management Committee comprises seven executive directors, namely
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman of the Executive Management
Committee), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Dr. Fok Ting Yeung,
James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith.

SHARE OPTION COMMITTEE

The Share Option Committee was established in 1996 with written
terms of reference to deal with issues regarding any grant of share
options under the Company’s share option scheme. In any case, the
grant of the Company’s share options to any director or his associates
requires the approval of the Company’s independent non-executive
directors. The Share Option Committee comprises two executive
directors, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (Chairman of the Share
Option Committee) and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the total remuneration in respect of audit
services and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditors
are HK$1,550,000 and HK$ 156,000 respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s financial statements. The statement of the auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 33
to 34 of the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control of the Group.
The system of internal control is designed to manage and eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee was
formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions in improving
business operations and performing internal audit. A comprehensive
policy and standard governing the process improvement and internal
audit scope and workflow, authority and integrity of the audit staff,
was promulgated in September 2006. Internal audit reports will be
directly sent to the Audit Committee periodically. After each Audit
Committee meeting, the Chairman of the Audit Committee will
address the significant internal audit findings for the Board’s
information and consideration.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries which cover the
review of risk management functions, the Company’s material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls, the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board considered the internal
control system effective and adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhancing investor relationship by
increasing its transparency to the investor community. Measures to
keep investors informed of the Group's latest developments
comprehensively and timely include posting of press release and
announcements on the Group’s website and e-mail news updates.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson jp, aged 47, is the Chairman of the
Company and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible
for the Group’s corporate planning and financial management. He
has been one of the members of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since November 1996. He graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Science and later
was awarded the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He received “The Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong” awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in September 1992 and was awarded as one of the “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons” in November 1997. He is a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong (Information Technology
Functional Constituency), the Vice Chairman of PRD Council of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and a member of The Hong
Kong — European Union Business Co-operation Committee. He is
the younger brother of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, the Managing
Director of the Company and the husband of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 49, is the Managing Director of
the Company and one of the founders of the Group. He is
responsible for the overall marketing and sales strategies of the
Group’s products. He has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over twenty-six years of
experience in marketing electronic components and consumer
electronic products. He received “Advanced Technology Development
Award” of “Capital Magazine's Outstanding Information Technology
and Financial Enterprise Awards” in August 2001. He is the elder
brother of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of the Company
and the brother-in-law of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 43, is an Executive Director of
the Company. She joined the Group in February 1992 and is
responsible for human resources management and administrative
matters of the Group. She has been one of the members of the Share
Option Committee of the Company since November 1996. She has
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master’s degree in Training and Human Resource
Management from the University of Leicester, United Kingdom, and
has over twenty-one years of experience in management and
administration. Mrs. Tam is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp,
the Chairman of the Company and the sister-in-law of Mr. Tam Wai
Tong, Thomas, the Managing Director of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 50, joined the Company as Executive
Director in April 1997. He is responsible for OEM/ODM business in
the Strategic Product Division and corporate business planning of the
Group. He is the Chief Executive Officer and President of Kabushiki
Kaisha Group Sense, a subsidiary of the Group in Japan. He
graduated from the Kansai University of Foreign Studies in Osaka,
Japan with a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign Languages, and has been
working for a Japanese electronics company for fourteen years before
he joined the Group. He has spent the latter ten years in the Hong
Kong office of this Japanese company since 1987, being responsible
for sales and marketing of electronic components such as IC, LCD,
etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 48, joined the Group in 1988 and was
appointed as Executive Director of the Company in April 1998. He is
responsible for the personal communication products business of the
Group. He has been one of the members of the Share Option
Committee of the Company since April 2003. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with Higher Certificate in Electronic
Engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science
from Asia International Open University and a Master of Science’s
degree in Engineering Business Management from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom. He has twenty-seven years of experience
in product development. He is the husband of Ms. Luk Chui Yung,
Judith, an Executive Director of the Company.

Dr. FOK Ting Yeung, James, aged 62, joined the Company as
Executive Director in April 1999. He is responsible for the Group’s
strategic operations. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Engineering
and a Master of Philosophy from the University of Hong Kong, and a
Doctor of Philosophy Degree from the University of London. He has
forty-one years of experience in many areas, including academic
research, industrial research, production management, product
development, consulting and strategic business development. Before
joining the Group, he was the Deputy Executive Director of Hong
Kong Productivity Council, an organization for which he has served
for thirteen years. He is the President of The Hong Kong Association
for the Advancement of Science & Technology, a Member of the
Executive Committee of the Manufacturing Enterprise Integration
and Innovation Association, a Member of the Committee on
Information Technology Training and Development of the Vocational
Training Council, and the Advisory Committee for the Knowledge
Management Research Centre of Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (continued)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 44, joined the Group in 1989
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in June
2007. She is responsible for the electronic dictionary business in the
Electronic Dictionary Division, corporate sourcing strategy and
electronic publishing of the Group. She graduated from the City
University of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma in Business
Management. She has twenty-two years of experience in marketing
& sales of consumer electronic products. She is the wife of Mr. Lee
Koon Hung, an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp, aged 53, Member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference — National Committee,
Certified Financial Planner®, Registered Financial Consultant,
Chartered Financial Practitioner, is a Senior District Director of
American International Assurance Company (Bermuda) Limited. He is
also the Hong Kong and Macau Chair of International Association of
Registered Financial Consultants. He was awarded the International
EMBA from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He
joined the Company as Independent Non-executive Director in
January 1995 and has been one of the members of the Audit
Committee since March 1999. He has over twenty-nine years of
experience in insurance and received “The Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Award” in November 1994. He was the Chairman of The
Outstanding Young Persons’ Association (2000-2002), the President
of The Life Underwriter Association Hong Kong (1991), the President
of the General Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong
(1995-1996), the Co-Chairman of the Asia Pacific Life Insurance
Council (1996-1997) and the International Committee Chairman of
GAMA International (1997-1999). He is a Council Member of Kwai
Tsing District Council. He is a Council Member and a Co-Convenor of
Independent Non-executive Directors Committee of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and the Founding President of Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association. He also sits in a
number of non-governmental organizations and Government
committees as either chairman or committee member.

Mr. HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 51, is the director of G2B
Company Limited. He joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in January 1995. He has been the member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company
since November 1996 and March 1999 respectively. He has obtained
a Diploma in Journalism from the Shue Yan University and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over twenty-eight years of experience in marketing
consumer electronic products.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 47, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee in September 2004. He has been a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since January 2005. He
graduated from The University of Hawaii with a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration majoring in Accounting. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
sixteen years of experience in accounting and auditing. At present,
Mr. Wong is the Managing Director of Fortune Capital Group Limited.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Polyard
Petroleum International Group Limited, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and an independent director of China Shen Zhou Mining &
Resources, Inc., a company listed on the American Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Masakatsu TSUJI, aged 73, is the Deputy Managing Director —
Manufacturing of the Group. He has extensive experience in
manufacturing of electronic products such as personal computers and
personal digital assistants. Prior to joining the Group in July 1999, he
worked for a famous Japanese electronics company as a senior
management staff for thirty-eight years and has considerable overseas
working experience in United States, Korea and other Southeast
Asian countries.

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 53, is the Executive Director,
Marketing and Business Development of Group Sense PDA Limited
and Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited, subsidiaries of the Group. He
holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from University of
East Asia. Prior to joining the Group in December 2003, he has more
than twenty years of experience in marketing and manufacturing of
consumer electronic products.

Mr. CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 50, is the General Manager of the
Group’s Strategic Product Division. He graduated from University of
Birmingham, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science in
Computer Science. He has over twenty-five years of experience in the
field of electronics and computer products. He joined the Group in
1993.
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The Board present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates
are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2011 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
35.

No interim dividend was paid during the year and the Board does not
recommend any payment of final dividend to shareholders for the
year ended 31st March, 2011. The retention of the loss of the Group
as at 31st March, 2011 was HK$50,945,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March, 2011:

(i) The Group’s largest customer and five largest customers
accounted for 17% and 52% respectively of the Group’s total
revenue.

(i)  The Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for 15% and 32% respectively of the Group’s total
purchases (not including purchases of items which are of
capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of the directors,
their associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital had any interest in the five largest
customers nor the five largest suppliers.

2011 BFEIHRE Annual Report

25



26

EEEHRE (8B)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

MR- BERRE

REAFER ZEBFEZWERE - RAK
ERRE BERBSE ITARIBRE

B IR BA362,45978 7t~ 1,418,658 T

6,990,808 JT * 1,592,592 7% T & 18,929,228
BT

BEFRRAKERAFRAZNE BER
RIE2EME BB RIS R HERME
14 -

RN

RRABRAR 2 BEFHBEFI R B HRERM =
32°

it 8

REFRARDBARAEEFEREFED 5
HIRMBHRERWIMRGAEREH R
o

o] {7k fE e

RZBE——F=ZA=+—-HB ' A2ARER
BEREELNTE198 (BB EXER
A IREE AN AQTARMDEERSE
$£409,710,1897% 7T 7] LA LA 44 2 4T % 757 =0 R
§'§~o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired leasehold improvement of
HK$362,459, furniture, fixtures and equipment of HK$1,418,658,
plant and machinery of HK$6,990,808, toolings and moulds of
HK$1,592,592 and construction in progress of HK$18,929,228.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st March, 2011, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$409,710,189, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Fok Ting Yeung, James

Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Independent non-executive directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
Wong Kon Man, Jason

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Mr.
Wong Kon Man, Jason retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

All non-executive directors have been appointed for a term of no
more than one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp, Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason, an annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31st March, 2011, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

FEEBERROHE (&)

Number of ordinary shares held (long position)

HE#T
[N
EEHE BAREZE RikEzxz HtiEz Batk
= Nature Personal Family Other #E % of issued
Names of directors of interests interests interests interests Total share capital
BEZEATH+ MEr—®% = 31,732,000 — 537,877,118 569,609,118 47.56
Tam WaiHo, Samson Jp Notes 1 &2
EBER MiEr—®% = 34,732,000 — 537,877,118 572,609,118 47.81
Tam WaiTong, Thomas Notes 1 &2
EBEEE Fff & — 2,300,000 — 537,877,118 540,177,118 45.10
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian Note 1
RAFE 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000 0.17
Kazuhiro Otani
By 1,676,000 = — 1,676,000 0.14
Lee KoonHung
EER 550,000 — = 550,000 0.05

Luk ChuiYung, Judith
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Notes:

1. The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill
Holdings Limited, a company ultimately beneficially owned by The
Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas 1992 Trust in equal shares. The
Samson 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp and Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (spouse of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp). The Thomas
1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of
which include Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas and Mrs. Tam Ng Lai Yuen,
Jocelyn (spouse of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas). Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, being directors, are directors of Earnmill Holdings Limited.

2. Included above is the 25,732,000 shares which are jointly owned by Dr.
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

The interests of the directors and their associates in the share options
granted by the Company are set out in the section “Share Options”
in the Report of Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2011, none of the directors
or their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share option
scheme are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the financial
year ended 31st March, 2011.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2011, the register of substantial shareholders kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests
and short positions in the issued capital of the Company:

FiEEBER
BREBEE (FR) HEBRTRAR
Number of ZHEDL
REZHE ordinary shares held % ofissued
Names of shareholders (Long Position) share capital
Earnmill Holdings Limited 537,877,118 44,91

DJE Investment S.A.

Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT

(FF5E —) (Note 1)

72,284,000 6.04
(FfF5F =) (Note 2)

72,284,000 6.04
(FfF5F =) (Note 2)

72,284,000 6.04
(FfF5F =) (Note 2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” disclosed above.

2. DJE Investment S.A. held 72,284,000 shares as an investment manager.
DJE Investment S.A. was 81% controlled by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital
AG, which was in turn 68.5% controlled by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl
EHRHARDT. Therefore, DJE Investment S.A., Dr Jens Ehrhardt Kapital
AG and Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT were all interested or deemed
to be interested in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2011, the Company had not
been notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Company’s directors
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2011.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exactly than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having
made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors have complied with,
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year ended 31st March, 2011.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and
Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held four meetings with
100% attendance to review the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discuss internal control and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual
results for the year ended 31st March, 2011.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp
Chairman

Hong Kong
28th June, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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To the shareholders of
Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Group
Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 134, which comprise
the consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2011, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
28 June 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_Z——F=A=t+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2011

—E——-% =—E-TF
2011 2010
FYEE FExT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
A REVENUE 5 622,855 663,261
$HE B A Cost of sales (446,373) (478,275)
ER Gross profit 176,482 184,986
Hg AR U FE  Otherincome and gains, net 5 12,175 11,480
HE R D KA Selling and distribution costs (48,633) (50,945)
THXH Administrative expenses (89,694) (86,063)
HE R ET N Research and development expenses (79,715) (79,961)
Htxx Other expenses (1,600) —
7 & pR AR Finance costs 7 — 24)
FEAE R EHIEBEEIE  Share of losses of jointly-controlled entities (500) (1,463)
A EE LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (31,485) (21,990)
BEXH Income tax expenses 10 (292) (12,942)
KEEEIE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (31,777) (34,932)
H {2 M W & OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MEBIEBZ Exchange differences on translation of
ELERE foreign operations 10,888 940
AEEXHEBERE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR (20,889) (33,992)
FEARER(E5E) : Profit/(oss) attributable to:
ARAREFEA Equity holders of the Company " (31,807) (34,256)
R HI R Non-controlling interests 30 (676)
(31,777) (34,932)
EaEEmEmWE () Total comprehensive income/(loss)
g attributable to:
AARREFEA Equity holders of the Company (21,175) (33,316)
JEEFIEE Non-controlling interests 286 (676)
(20,889) (33,992)
ARAREBR LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
RERFE AEML ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
BRER THE COMPANY 13
EH IR GBAL) Basic (HK cents) (2.7) (2.9
#5E OB1) Diluted (HK cents) 2.7) (2.9)

BBEREZHBERMBHRERMF 12

statements.

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-E——F=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2011

—E2-—-F Z—E2-ZF
2011 2010
MY EE FH& T FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BERERE Property, plantand equipment 14 101,091 85,581
FEAEEREE Prepaid lease payments 15 17,082 17,142
15 3IE BA 8% B AR Deferred development costs 16 1,265 3,011
HEEZEHERBER Interestsin jointly-controlled entities 18 16,670 13,122
BeENRER Interestsin associates 19 — —
AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments 20 38,153 26,094
RS Long term deposits 21 4,942 7,556
FREEEHLE Total non-current assets 179,203 152,506
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
7E Inventories 22 116,063 125,314
EWE SR Trade receivables 23 90,424 84,617
FENRE S REM  Prepayments, depositsand
FE W BR =X otherreceivables 24 50,391 62,819
FE W Bt = N B BR X Amounts due from associates 19 1,453 2,833
BRAFERABRR Investments at fair value through
ZRE profitor loss 25 8,450 40,654
fTE€mIT A Derivative financial instruments 26 227 —
ReRhBELEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 27 163,900 201,343
MENEEHRLE Total current assets 430,908 517,580
nREEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EAEZRALENEIE Tradeandbillspayables 28 38,554 83,750
HEIRF R ESTAE Otherpayablesandaccruals 29 88,205 54,012
FE 5 B =K Taxpayable 9,644 37,692
fTEemIT A Derivative financial instruments 26 — 35
MEBERARE Total currentliabilities 136,403 175,489
REEEZERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 294,505 342,091
EEFE Net assets 473,708 494,597

S (EKR)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

R=Z——F=A=+-A

As at 31 March 2011

—g--F =ZT-2F
2011 2010
ik TR FiBT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
% 1 EQUITY
EATREFSEA Equity attributable to equity holders of
FE 15 B 1 the Company
2ETRAR Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
(EA] Reserves 34(a) 350,201 371,376
469,967 491,142
FEEH R Non-controlling interests 3,741 3,455
IR R R Total equity 473,708 494,597
EEEELtATret EERRE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
EF EF
Director Director
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RERE@mEEXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_Z——F=A=t+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2011

ARRARERFEARSL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B
2T R RRE EAEHE Bh  ERRB  REEN F 4 RE
BRA  ORER* #E* e R wE (REER)* B8 [ $: X
Retained
Share Share Capital Exchange profits/ Non-
Issued  premium  option redemption Special  fluctuation  (accumulated controlling Total
capital  account* reserve * reserve*  reserve * reserve * losses) *  Total interests  equity
TER TEL TFiER THER TR TER TEL FiER TR TFER
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
(MEE34(a)
(note 34(a))
WNZZETHhE  At1Apil 2009
A-H 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) 37,408 15,118 524,458 4128 528,586
TEEBR Loss for the year — - — - — - (34,256)  (34,256) (676)  (34,932)
REEHM Other comprehensive
2HEME income for the year:
WEEMER  Exchange differences on
ZERER translation of foreign
operations — — — — — 940 — 940 — 940
AEE2AE Total comprehensive
W/ (&8|)  incomel(loss) for
nE the year — — — - — 940 (34,25)  (33316) (676)  (33,992)
—-MBLR Capital contribution from
—F24KRE  anon-controlling
EE shareholder of
a subsidiary — — - — — — — — 3 3
WZZ—-ZF  At31March2010and at
ZA=+-8  1Apil2010
RR=ZE-Z2F
mA—H 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) 38,348 (19,138) 491,142 3455 494,597
AEERF,/  Profitlloss) for the year
(B8) — — — — — — (31,807)  (31,807) 30 (31,777)
RrEEHM Other comprehensive
ZEWNE: income for the year:
ITESMEK  Exchange differences on
ZERER translation of foreign
operations — — — — — 10,632 — 10,632 256 10,888
AEE2E Total comprehensive
Wi/ (F8) income/(loss) for the year
E — - — - - 10632 (31.807)  (21,175) 286 (20,889)
R=Z——%  At31March 2011
=ZR=+-H 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) 48,980 (50,945) 469,967 3,741 473,708

* HEREREEAGESVEMRRRZEASER *  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
%350,201,00078 T (=& — & % : 371,376,000 HK$350,201,000 (2010: HK$371,376,000) in the consolidated statement
BT ° of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_Z——F=A=t+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2011

—E-—F5 =ZE-ZF
2011 2010
FYEE FERT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBCHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
HATEE Loss before tax (31,485) (21,990)
PR Adjustments for:

BE KA Finance costs 7 — 24

HEEdESEER Impairment loss on interests in jointly-

BEERE controlled entities 1,600 —
FEAEHEE4IEREIE  Share of losses of jointly-controlled entities 500 1,463
BITFE WA Bank interest income 5 (695) (2,026)
EAFERABRR Interest income from investments at

ZERERMEWA fair value through profit or loss 5 (2,080) (2,676)
AHEEREZRE Dividend income from available-

A for-sale investments 5 (1,062) (628)
HEYE BMEKRKRE (Gain)/loss on disposal of items of

BHEz (W) EE property, plant and equipment, net

FEE 6 (1.336) 559
BAFERABHEKZ  Fairvalue losses on investments at fair

KREZAFEEE" value through profit or loss, net

REE 5 1,171 236
AFEEE(WE) Fair value losses/(gains), net:

HER

TESREE Derivative financial assets 5 (291) —

TEEmEaE Derivative financial liabilities 5 — 97
e Depreciation 6 15,364 21,611
FENHEREZER Recognition of prepaid lease payments 6 464 454
I 7IE B8 22 i AN 12 6 Amortisation of deferred development costs 6 2,064 2,947
FERE Provision for inventories 6 18,534 9,819

2,748 9,890
FEEm Increase in inventories (9,283) (38,390)
FEWE SRR (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

(3 ),/ (5,807) 29,906
FENFE - REREM  (ncrease)/decrease in prepayments,

FEWBR 2k (32 4n) S A deposits and other receivables 7,921 (10,106)
FEWES A TIBEFURI4>  Decrease in amounts due from associates 1,380 905
EHE SRR ERS Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables

ZRIE MO D) (45,196) 5,494
Hih IR R BT Increase in other payables and accruals

B EEm 34,193 14,572
EA—HEEHER Decrease in an amount due to a jointly-

AR RO 2 controlled entity — (96)
PTESRMEEZRD Decrease in derivative financial assets 29 596
fTEEmaBEzZHY Decrease in derivative financial liabilities — (457)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

BE-_Z——H=A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2011

—E——F CZZ-TF

2011 2010
FYEE FEx FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEAES (EM) Cash generated from/(used in) operations

ZHRE (14,015) 12,314
B EBHE Hong Kong taxes paid (23,586) —
B IE Overseas taxes paid (154) (49)
BEEERBEHELRA  Netcash flows from/(used in) operating

CRi) #58 activities (37,755) 12,265
REXBZEERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FEW A Interest received 695 2,026
BATPERLRABEHERZ  Interest received from investments at fair value

BEZFMERA through profit or loss 2,080 2,676
AHEEREZREUWA Dividend income from available-for-sale

investments 1,062 628
BAYE BERKRE Purchases of items of property,

HHE plant and equipment 14 (29,294) (19,860)
HENE BMERSEE Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

HB 2B RIE plant and equipment 1,417 2,120
38 0 I FE A B BR AR Additions to deferred development costs 16 (296) (762)
REAHEERE Investment in available-for-sale investments (9,706) —
W —HEZEHEE Increase in an amount due from a

8RR IE AN jointly-controlled entity (5,648) (4,978)
Bl —E8EBHEREM Increase in an amount due from a

joint-venture partner (93) (93)
RS (&M, SR (Increase)/decrease in long term deposits 261 (5,448)
HEZIHIEAFERA  Proceeds from maturity of investment at

BRERZKREMEBARE fair value through profit or loss 31,033 —
REEK 2R ESRHFEE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (8,489) (23,691)
RMEXBZHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ELE=g2 S Finance costs — 24)
EBEETER Repayment of bank loans — (15,428)
—ME AT —FESH Capital injection from a non-controlling

BREEE shareholder of a subsidiary — 3
MEXK 2B S RHFE Net cash flows used in financing activities — (15,449)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

BE-_Z——H=A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2011

—E-—F5 =ZE-ZF
2011 2010
FYEE FEx FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
He¢RBESLSMEER -  NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
W EE EQUIVALENTS (46,244) (26,875)
FzBHERBEELEE  Cashand cash equivalents at beginning
EH of year 201,343 227,296
SNEETE RS TR SERE  Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 8,801 922
FRZEERAEL%ME  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
EH END OF YEAR 163,900 201,343
ReRESZEHEER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
RO CASH EQUIVALENTS 27
REeRIRITER Cash and bank balances 132,537 79,311
BARELHN=MARAR  Non-pledged time deposits with original
DEAZ IR EHIEF maturity of less than three months when
acquired 31,363 122,032
NESMBMRRRKEES Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
MERERIEZIEE  the consolidated statement of financial
FIESZEER position and consolidated statement of
cash flows 163,900 201,343
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-E——F=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2011

—E2——F —E-EF
2011 2010
FYEE FHET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
P ENGIE £ Interests in subsidiaries 17 667,245 687,237
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE U B B 2 R BR =X Due from subsidiaries 17 3,000 3,000
FEARIE - BekHEAM Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
FE U BR X 24 200 308
RERBITEHER Cash and bank balances 27 199 197
RENEEMEE Total current assets 3,399 3,505
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
Estasd Accruals 29 503 476
FEA R Tax payable — 780
REBEERE Total current liabilities 503 1,256
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,896 2,249
EELABERABERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 670,141 689,486
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEATFET B 2~ B BRFX Due to subsidiaries 17 197,465 195,314
EEFE Net assets 472,676 494,172
i ¥ EQUITY
2 EITIRA Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
& Reserves 34(b) 352,910 374,406
BRrERE Total equity 472,676 494,172
EEEELAvst BEREELE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
- -
Director Director
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E——%=A=+—H
31 March 2011

2.1
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at 6th Floor,
Enterprise Place, No. 5 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong
Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of a range of electronic handheld
products, primarily electronic dictionaries, personal
communication products, and manufacture of original design
manufacturing (“ODM") products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

2.1 REEXE (8)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010 (continued)
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwiill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 April 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been
applied on a prospective basis. The following differences,
however, are carried forward in certain instances from the
previous basis of consolidation:

o Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-
controlling interest until the balance was reduced to nil.
Any further excess losses were attributable to the parent,
unless the non-controlling interest had a binding
obligation to cover these. Losses prior to 1 April 2010
were not reallocated between non-controlling interest
and the parent shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the
investment retained at its proportionate share of net
asset value at the date control was lost. The carrying
amount of such investment at 1 April 2010 has not been
restated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES

22 MBBERIBE 2N E
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

BEBUBREELN BARHEBIHE HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
ENE A D) FER Financial Reporting Standards
EEMBREEDN HEBUBEREER HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1
ERE AT PN FIRERED First-time Adoption of
EBOBHEES Hong Kong Financial
—BXFENEZ Reporting Standards —
BHHE BT Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters
EAMBEREEDN HEBHBREEL HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
E25BFI R E2RURGBE based Payment — Group
BLA—EEUHA Cash-settled Share-based
EHEEZRBE Payment Transactions
X B2 B
ERUBRREED EHAH HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
35 (BE3T)
FEeHEg HARBUHKRE HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
275 (BE3T) Financial Statements
EBeitER UEBESHEREDNE HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32
ERVE AT EEIA: ZH MK Financial Instruments:
Vi dig A Presentation — Classification of
Rights Issues
EBeitER UHEBESHERE39 HKAS 39 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 39
HRBET A SEHMIA BER Financial Instruments:
Hit2— S EKY Recognition and Measurement
HIEE 2B — Eligible Hedged Items
&8 (AMRE# BEBEADRHELERE HK(FRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
RERBZES) to Owners
-2RBET
RZEENE+H UEENBRLELSES Amendments to HKFRS 5 Amendments to HKFRS 5
BOAEHEE EEHERALULE included in Improvements  Non-current Assets Held for
BIRiR 2R B ERE M EE—;TE to HKFRSs issued Sale and Discontinued
XENEBHRE  HEWBLTNEZHE in October 2008 Operations — Plan to Sell the
EEBESE . BB Controlling Interest in a

5

Subsidiary

EEURRLEN Z2BESFEVERLENY Improvement to HKFRs Amendments to a number of
ZUE(ZEER B (May 2009) HKFRSs*

ERRA)

BBRBEIE HE—REBLHHE HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the
(R=BEAE BEHHRE (Revised in December Length of Lease Term in respect
+Z AREE 2009) of Hong Kong Land Leases

EBRBESE B #FFxz2H—E HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial

AHEE R RERHN
REHEFZAE

Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
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22 I BEREEZ2HE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
(#8) AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

* EEUMBBEELENZRE(ZEZE RN * Improvements to HKFRSs (May 2009) contain amendments to

FHA)BREEBUHRELEAE2
5 BEBUBMELRESK BB
BREEDESR - BB EAE
155 BESRERNEIR BEBEF
HERIE175 BRI ERE36R
ERGERE3LE  BESHEL
$39%% BB (AR BEREREER
EE)-RBEIRRERB(BABRYK

TREBZEEE)-RESIRZE
To

RAHIBRYBRELENHES 27
FemEzASTHERBESH
BZzREARVBRRLBEERLE -

HKFRS 2, HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS
36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16.

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods which have been prepared and presented.

23 CEHENAEMWERE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
B3R5 %R KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

BT AR RS B R RAR B R IR
FT 312 28 (B 14 R A R A9 3 I ET R
BETNEBMBIREER

ERMBREER
FIRETR

HEBUBRSEAE R
BEARBEENEHE
BH—BERRREREE
HBRERAET SRR

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendment

Amendment to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Limited

HBEHZERSGE Exemption from
2B Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters'
BERUBREEDN FEANKBREENEIR HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7
ENLACHEAN SETE BE—25 Financial Instruments:
EEZEE 215 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets’
ERUBGEERN £FTE HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
F9%
EBEER EBOHENSENEFEH HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12
ERVEACHEN —EEHIE  HEEE Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:
W 2 53] Recovery of Underlying
Assets’
BEETE BEANLRE HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures’

243 (KIB3FT)

55 EBRUERE HE5E ERIERERE
REZES)-RE Z88)-REBEFURERN
EAVE A CHP ELEXBMFA 2B
B8 ERBERE UREIAEELHAR
REZES)-RE

$£19%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 19

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010, whereas the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1,
HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1
of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value,
on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of financial
assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO").
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of
the liability’s credit risk in OCIl would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have
been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the
Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April
2013.

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of
related parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of related
party disclosure to government-related entities for transactions
with the same government or entities that are controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the same
government.

While the adoption of the revised standard will result in
changes in the accounting policy, the revised standard is
unlikely to have any impact on the related party disclosures as
the Group currently does not have any significant transactions
with government-related entities.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 April 2011. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Those amendments
that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
policies are as follows:

()

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that the
amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration do
not apply to contingent consideration that arose from
business combinations whose acquisition dates precede
the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the measurement
choice of non-controlling interests at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets to components of non-controlling interests that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation. Other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to clarify

the accounting treatment for non-replaced and
voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
that an analysis of other comprehensive income for each
component of equity can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the
financial statements.

(0 HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Clarifies that the consequential amendments
from HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21,
HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or
earlier if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets
are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and losses
from the joint venture's operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion
to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@)  asubsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b)  a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;,

(¢ an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital
and is in a position to exercise significant influence over
the joint venture;

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and has
neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise
significant influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

Jointly-controlled entities are joint ventures that are subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the
jointly-controlled entities.

The Group's investments in jointly-controlled entities are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled
entities are included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of jointly-controlled entity is included as part of the
Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates and is not individually tested for
impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 April 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at
the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured until it is finally
settled within equity.

Goodwiill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Business combinations from 1 April 2010 (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Business combinations prior to 1 April 2010 but after 1 April
2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which
were applied on a prospective basis, the following differences
applied to business combinations prior to 1 April 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase
method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling
interest was measured at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for
as separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did
not affect previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree were not
reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination
resulted in a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modified the cash flows that otherwise would have
been required under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the
Group had a present obligation, the economic outflow was
more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable.
Subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



MBmRME (B)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

24 TESTTHERE (B)

BEAL

ETHERT  BEBALTERELRE
EoEEAL:

(a)

BEESEB-—ERZSEPNAH
B ()EHNAREIAXILAEE
FAEERAEMATHEEG

(VEEAEE 2D LUHAR
SEBREEAFEL RIHHXE
BEASEZZHE
FRALABERLT

BBATRAREHERE

BREATRATEEZEEERA
=

BEBRALTARQ@QIAEMREALTZ
BHREE

FRALTZEEIBEBBENO
REeEMMA T ZERBAES -
M ARRZEHIZEERF
2 UEFEAREE H

FRALAAEESERHEBE
ALt ZEAERZEER®FNZE
KEBEFETE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (i) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 2%

Leasehold improvements 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%

Plant and machinery 15% t0 25%

Tooling and moulds 50%

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year
end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the estimated commercial lives of the underlying
products of three years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases are charged to income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from a joint-venture
partner, associates and a jointly-controlled entity, quoted and
unquoted financial instruments and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. These net fair changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management'’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement. Reassessment
only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income
in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in other operating
expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other operating expenses and removed from the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
The reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of
the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amount due to a jointly-controlled entity,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



BB mERME (B)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

24 TESTTHERE (B)

THEE (&)

MBERER
AEBFRBBTHMBEERSRERAE
BAREBRBEEB T ENGRRREH
HAR AERBEARBHNEX
BEMRUBEFAEANEGR  — 7
BBERESENEFERE X FEM
EERERBREESERNRZEN
BRRERE  AEERUATWE
THRSEFBMBEREE  IRK
EHRHEERAERMEIHNE
EEFTEE RODBEEIN SR
(BB M) ReT#ERRAEREE -

RIEEZTHE R
EEEZEBCWET BUERER
ZEREBETTRILEER -

HE-ERARAERTEHERRKE
ZEFEHEE IARFEBHRIRE
BERAER FRBBRABITHRAEL
HRRAEREE  WHRIHMEE B
FREEZEZERNKERAER -

TR T ARV

fisi BL{£ 15 B AT1E A 1T & AR A5 7
ANCHEODEEE TR FHE

BREHE FEASERZEENBEZ
BE - AEeRmEENEMAESEM
e ERBIRRRBEFHE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
technigues. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; and a
discounted cash flow analysis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  income from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered;

(© interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 33 to the financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings or loss
per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff retirement
scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for its employees (including
certain directors), the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO
Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to
his/her interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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31 March 2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(@)  Impairment test of items of property, plant and

equipment

Management estimates the recoverable amount of items
of property, plant and equipment when an indication of
impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units. Estimating the
value in use requires the management to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

©

@

S (EB)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. A change
in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an investment or
a group of investments is impaired based on their fair
value. When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in profit or loss. At 31 March 2011,
HK$10,000,000 impairment losses have been recognised
for available-for-sale investments (2010:
HK$10,000,000).

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates based
on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate
so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the
basis of making the allowance and its future results
would be affected.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e

@

©

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two years on
certain products and undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant
judgement is required when determining the warranty
expenses. The Group estimates the warranty expenses
based on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24 months.
Where the warranty expenses incurred are different from
the original provision, such difference would impact
profit or loss in the period in which the additional
warranty expenses are incurred.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and
the expected period of benefits.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@  the electronic handheld products segment designs,
manufactures and sells a range of electronic handheld
products;

(b)  the ODM products segment designs, manufactures and
sells ODM products; and

(©)  the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income, expenses, asset and liability items related to the
Group’s investment activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.
The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s loss before tax except that interest income,
dividend income and finance costs as well as head office
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale investments, amounts
due from associates and a joint-venture partner, cash and cash
equivalents and unallocated head office assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable and unallocated head
office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

4. EXBoBEHR (B) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
PHEEHEHEREERSEHEEE = Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
ENEETEEGERIE- to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

2F  EREHRE ¥R

BEFfEM *EEM Hit wa
Electronic
BE-_ZT——% Year ended handheld ODM  Corporate
ZA=+—HLEE 31March2011 products products and others Total

TERx FTER FTER FTER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

DERA: Segment revenue:
HETHIREP Sales to external

customers 250,900 371,955 — 622,855
PEEE Segment results (41,911) 9,140 2,691 (30,080)
BER - Reconciliation:

FE WA Interest income 695

HEEZEHEE Impairment loss on

R EEE interests of jointly-

controlled entities (1,600)

FEfh H[R1EH B 88 Share of losses of jointly-

BB controlled entities (500)
BAIEE Loss before tax (31,485)
DHEEE Segment assets 197,199 181,105 27,571 405,875
¥R Reconciliation:

AOBEE Unallocated assets 204,236
HEE Total assets 610,111
THEEE Segment liabilities 70,659 55,597 503 126,759
BER - Reconciliation:

P = Unallocated liabilities 9,644
FER=R Total liabilities 136,403
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

4. XBHEEH () 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Er R4&E TER
ETER *EEm Hith WEE
Electronic
BE-_Z——F Year ended handheld ODM Corporate
=A=+—HILFE 31 March 2011 products products  and others Total
FEx FExT FEx FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HibpHER : Other segment
information:
FEIRHEE4|ERE  Share of losses of
BB jointly-controlled
entities — — 500 500
MEREHE Depreciation and
amortisation 9,090 6,749 2,053 17,892
=N Capital expenditure 23,978 5,446 166 29,590*
HEWE -BER  Gain on disposal of
RBEEZ items of property,
Wi BEE plant and equipment,
net (502) (834) — (1,336)
FERE Provision for inventories 9,934 8,600 — 18,534
EmRERE Product warranty
provision 646 — — 646
HEZESEEMEZR  Impairment loss on
WEEE interests on jointly-
controlled entities — — 1,600 1,600
HEEHESEMER  Interests in jointly-
controlled entities — — 16,670 16,670
* EXBRTEERIMME BREREE * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

R 3 SIE B B AR o

equipment and deferred development costs.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



% R B e (48)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

4,

EBoEER (E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

EE R4 TER
ETEM YEEM Ht 28
Electronic
BEZZ—E2H% Year ended handheld ODM Corporate
=A=+—HLFE 31March2010 products products and others Total
FExT FExT FExT FExT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DERA Segment revenue:
HETFTHIAER Sales to external
customers 327,229 336,032 — 663,261
DEES Segment results (33,356) 7,482 3,345 (22,529)
AR Reconciliation:

FE W A Interest income 2,026

A& R A Finance costs 24)

FEIEHEE4IERE  Share of losses of

BB jointly-controlled
entities (1,463)
BT Ea Loss before tax (21,990)
PEEE Segment assets 216,439 165,429 57,714 439,582
R - Reconciliation:

ROBMEE Unallocated assets 230,504
BMEE Total assets 670,086
SEERE Segment liabilities 68,093 69,193 511 137,797
BER - Reconciliation:

AOEBEE Unallocated liabilities 37,692
AEEFE Total liabilities 175,489
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

4. XBHEEH () 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Z2r RERE TtER
BEFEmM TEEM Hith HEE
Electronic
BEZZ—E2H% Year ended handheld ODM Corporate
=A=+—HLFE 31March2010 products products and others Total
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HttpEER Other segment
information:
(R E4E4|E R Share of losses of
EE jointly-controlled
entities — — 1,463 1,463
WELE#H Depreciation and
amortisation 13,841 7,970 3,201 25,012
EXARX Capital expenditure 17,026 3,291 305 20,622*
HEYHE - WER  Loss/(gain)on
HBEE 2 disposal of items
BB () of property,
TR plant and
equipment, net 650 (46) (45) 559
FERE Provision for
inventories 5,419 4,400 — 9,819
EmRERE Product warranty
provision 738 — — 738
HEE4EEER Interests in jointly-
controlled entities — — 13,122 13,122
* ERABZTBESERIME BERZHB * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and deferred development costs.
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4. EBoBVEH (B)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

i & & R Geographical information
(@) XEIIREEFZIKA (@  Revenue from external customers
—E2——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
FHExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
SN Japan 320,082 318,747
B8 Hong Kong 90,706 97,706
=9 Taiwan 75,884 72,176
3k M North America 50,814 46,593
FuAE) Vietnam 16,782 37,708
BBE Korea 4,048 36,229
FE (BB Mainland China (other than Hong Kong) 20,492 23,983
HaTmMER Other Asian countries 11,925 4,668
Hih Others 32,122 25,451
622,855 663,261

b)

LMz WABRRREFTF AR

The revenue information above is based on the location

1EHh o of the customers.

HFREEE (b)  Non-current assets
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
FHExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE (BB Mainland China (other than Hong Kong) 127,532 109,580
&8 Hong Kong 13,006 16,398
Hith Others 512 434
141,050 126,412

Lz RBEEENRREE
EWAEN ST AR -

2011 BFEHRE Annual Report
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

4. EXBoBEHR (B) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
TEEZFER Information about major customers
KARBEEEREF FEAEERA Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to
10% s LA £ 5T : 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, are set out below:
=F——-F
2011
g2+ R ET
EfE® EYEEM HmEE
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Total
FE T THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZFH Customer A — 106,385 106,385
BEFECZ Customer B 71,464 — 71,464
EZFR Customer C — 67,774 67,774
—E-=EF
2010
- FRAFRET
EFER YEE® HEg
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFH Customer A — 98,024 98,024
BFCZ Customer B 67,374 — 67,374
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5.

WA - E A R st - R

BWARSERAKENERE DAF
NEHEEmNWBEREEFAMER

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and

ERXRGITHNEEE trade discounts during the year.
WA -EHEMKARKZFEIMOT : An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as
follows:
—E——F =225
2011 2010
FHET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 622,855 663,261
Hibw A Other income
BEAFERABZRZ Interest income from investments at fair
REFNE WA value through profit or loss 2,080 2,676
RITREWA Bank interest income 695 2,026
B 7% & U A Service fee income 2,991 1,684
AHEEREZKREUW A  Dividend income from available-for-sale investments 1,062 628
Hitb Others 4,891 4,799
11,719 11,813
Hit s B8 Other gains, net
DEEWE(BE) - FF : Fair value gains/(losses), net:
RAFERABRRZ Investments at fair value through profit or loss
®E&E (1,171) (236)
TESREE Derivative financial assets 291 —
TEEMEs Derivative financial liabilities — 97)
HEME - BWERSEHZ  Gainon disposal of items of property, plant
HEB 2z W& and equipment 1,336 _
456 (333)
12,175 11,480
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

6. HAIBE 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX
AEBZBRBABEENR (5T A) The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
THLIE: (crediting):
—E-—-F5 Z—ZE-Z2F
2011 2010
M & FExT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEFEERAK Cost of inventories sold 427,839 468,456
e Depreciation 14 15,364 21,611
FEAEEREZER Recognition of prepaid lease payments 15 464 454
MEREHELSL Research and development costs:
Dt 2 IELRIZ A Deferred development costs amortised 16 2,064 2,947
REERZ Current year expenditure 77,651 77,014
79,715 79,961
A+ REFLEEEE Minimum lease payments under operating
NEEEE leases in respect of land and buildings 11,407 11,158
2B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,550 1,515
BEEFHNEX (BFEESE Employee benefit expense (including
& (KiEEs)) : directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
FHEENRZ Wages and salaries and benefits in kind 185,116 172,824
BRI =% Pension scheme contributions 7,320 7,304
192,436 180,128
EREZHE 35 Foreign exchange differences, net (1,181) (2,925)
HEWE BMERKRME  (Gainyloss on disposal of items of
BE 2 (W) e property, plant and equipment, net (1,336) 559
FERE Provision for inventories 18,534 9,819
EmRERE Product warranty provision 646 738
HEEHSEEZMAE  Impairment loss on interests on
EriE * jointly-controlled entities* 1,600 —
* HEEHEBEZREBELDEER * Impairment loss on interests on jointly-controlled entities is
ZEEAKRERPZHiMEH] - included in “other expenses” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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7. RERAX 7. FINANCE COSTS
LT ARERADN: An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
rEE
Group
—E——-F ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REFR2HEEZHE Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowing
RITEERE wholly repayable within five years — 24
8. EEME 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
ARBEBBERZMAERLAEMNR Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
FHLIHTRATETRAD REEA Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of
ABRPIEIIIRATHEEFAESHE The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
mT and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
rEH
Group
—E-—F ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Fees 384 480
Hihif < : Other emoluments:
e EHEREBEYRR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,981 10,608
BERBRHEH RS Performance related incentive payments — —
BRARET R Pension scheme contributions 360 360
11,341 10,968
11,725 11,448
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31 March 2011

8. EEM S (&) 8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued)
@ BIFHITES (@) Independent non-executive directors

ERAFAMBILIEHATES The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
FTHHESNT during the year were as follows:

=E-—F =ZE-ZF

2011 2010

TER FHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

BkHgsns Avmt Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp 128 128

{a] Bl A%, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 128 128

T8 Wong Kon Man, Jason 128 128

384 384

RAFAABOBIHFHAITES There were no other emoluments payable to the

THEMME(CE—FF  |)o independent non-executive directors during the year

(2010: Nil).
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—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

8. EEM S (&) 8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued)
b)) HITEER—FHITES (b)  Executive directors and a non-executive director
£ BRE E&
BER i BERRE Bk
ik BMA&E A % B MR BHe
Salaries, Performance
allowances related Equity-settled Pension
and benefits incentive  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind payments benefits contributions remuneration
TER FER FTER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——-F 2011
HITEE: Executive directors:
BEZATHL  Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp — 2,732 — — 60 2,792
EBEE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas — 2,698 — — 60 2,758
EBRE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian — 591 - - 27 618
RBMNE Kazuhiro Otani — 1,697 — — 64 1,761
£S5 Lee Koon Hung — 1,166 — — 54 1,220
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James — 1,038 — — 47 1,085
EER Luk Chui Yung, Judith — 1,059 — — 43 1,107
— 10,981 — — 360 11,341

—E-ZF 2010

HITEE: Executive directors:
EEZATME  Tam WaiHo, Samson JP — 2,654 — — 60 2,714
BRE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas — 2,618 — — 60 2,678
EBER Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian — 557 — — 27 584
KEHNE Kazuhiro Otani — 1,703 — — 63 1,766
B30 Lee Koon Hung — 1,100 — — 54 1,154
EE¥ Fok Ting Yeung, James — 978 — — 47 1,025
HEER Luk Chui Yung, Judith — 998 — — 49 1,047
— 10,608 — — 360 10,968
FHITEE . Non-executive director:
EER~ Lo Chi Chung, William* % — — — - %
96 10,608 — — 360 11,064
* RZZE-ZEF-F—-B &=X * Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William resigned as a non-executive
BEEBERQARFEHNTES director of the Company on 1 January 2010.
s -
RAEFR THRESFTLEMNZ There was no arrangement under which a director
ERERBEREEAME (= waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
Z—ZF |- year (2010: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

9. HIEREHEES

REAFRALEBRESHEERBENS (=
Z-Z2F MR ES HMEHFREE
MR EXHEs AFEHEE—F (=
T-Z2F R BREFHESEEN

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2010: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the one
(2010: one) non-director, highest paid employee for the year

HEHEBNOT are as follows:

EE

Group
—2-—-F C—E2-ZF
2011 2010
FHE T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
He EZREREYNZR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,188 1,097
ERETEIHX Pension scheme contributions 52 52
1,240 1,149

10. BLIEX H 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

HRAFEAEBLIBEELEANEE
FERBLEF - I B FIBRGHR
BECEZ-ZH5 8 HtthEZE
RRBNHEBEBDRBARELEXER
FEZBRR A ZEEREHERR

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Company did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2010: Nil). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the respective countries/jurisdictions in which the

EFEo Group operates.
—E-—-F ZE-ZF
2011 2010
THER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

rEEH: Group:

BEFERBLIEA—FBE  Underprovision in prior years — Hong Kong 176 12,748
REE—HtiiE Current — Elsewhere 116 194
REEFHBENKRELE Total tax charged for the year 292 12,942
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

10. AL ()

BRARBAEELURATRELHE
ARTEEBEEREHE 2 HIES
M BB RS S BE X (R
E) H8E U RBARE (BEERE)
REBHEZHEDT :

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credits applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are

as follows:
AN £ Group
—E——fF —E-EF
2011 2010
FHET FExT
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

BAIEE Loss before tax (31,485) (21,990)
BWEEBRERHE 2B E  Tax at the statutory tax rate (5,509) 17.5 (3,827) 17.4
BEFEHREBAEZR Adjustments in respect of current tax

KNEE of previous periods 176 (0.6) 12,748 (58.0)
HEIEHEEEN Losses attributable to

EiE jointly-controlled entities 83 (0.3) 241 (1.1)
BAMB 2 WA Income not subject to tax (1,031) 3.3 (1,220) 5.5
TR 2 Expenses not deductible for tax 95 (0.3) 390 (1.8)
EHIBEBER M FAE4E  Tax losses not carried forward for

DUMBR AR EE 2 offsetting future assessable profits,

FERBL R 2 58 due to concession — — 21 0.1)
BEHBESAZFHE Tax losses utilised from previous

B8 periods (375) 1.2 (958) 4.4
KRR 2T IEEIE Tax losses not recognised 6,853 (21.7) 5,535 (25.2)
Hith Others — — 12 (0.0)
BAEBBERBERTTE  Tax charge at the Group’s effective

2 B E R rate 292 (0.9) 12,942 (58.9)

REBZ-EEE=ZA=Z+—AH1L
FE BBUER(HRERD BAE
£ B8 E T B 2 7 R1999/2000F &
20042005 F RABFEETHBEEE -
ARABEERE LHRBEBERz2E
X¥E3% NEBFE=-Z——F=A=
T—HLEFEE > AEECSE 176,000
BT (ZE—FHF :12,748,000/8T) 2
HEEE-

REBEZ-ZE——%=ZA=+—HLEF
E BERCEREREZELTN
BHEEE W EAEEEREMNBIES
BERBEIRZHE -

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD”) initiated a tax audit on certain
group companies for the years of assessment from 1999/2000
to 2004/2005. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
after taking the professional advice from its tax adviser, the
Group had made an additional tax provision of HK$176,000
(2010: HK$12,748,000) during the year ended 31 March 2011.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the IRD has finalised
the tax review and has reached agreement with the Group on
the additional tax liabilities and tax penalty on these companies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

1.

12.

13.

g@ﬂ&%%ﬁk@ﬁ%

BEZZE——F=ZA=Z+—HLHF
EXAQAARESEAELGZAEEBR
BRE-ZCIAERLDITERERZ
B5 821,496,000 T (=& — T &
32,908,000 Jt) (MI5E34(b)) °

=)

ESEfEZNBE-_ZE——5=A8
=t -HEFERGEARE (22—
TEHE)

NG

KA E
BiEER

12.

g&&%%ﬁk 13.

i}

11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 includes a loss of
HK$21,496,000 (2010: HK$32,908,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2010: Nil) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

BEREXREE (@)

BEREXEBEEDRELRAQAAEB
BERESEAEBLRAFEER
31,807,000 T (=& — F F:
34,256,000 ) R A F R 1T
B% 3 = hn#E F 39 £01,197,663,029
(==& —ZF:1,197,663,029) &t

—
QD
=

% o
b) HERZBRER (b)

HE-_Z——R-Z-—ZFF=
B=+—BLFE BAQTXR
THEZEARBREHERERE
BIESEEREEZE SR
EXBEIIEELAE-

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$31,807,000 (2010:
HK$34,256,000) and the weighted average of
1,197,663,029 (2010: 1,197,663,029) shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2011
and 2010 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
Company’s share options outstanding had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.



MBmRME (B)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

14. % BERKE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
rE Group
HELH KA %EB & I
rEF EL ] SEL R#E RIE AE  ERIR ag
Leasehold Furniture, Toolings
land and Leasehold fixturesand  Plant and and Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  equipment machinery  moulds  vehicles in progress Total

TR TR TEx TR TER THEx TEL TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000

—Eg--F 31 March 2011
ZB=t-H

R-B-ZE  At1Apil2010

A-R:

BA Cost 73,990 38,165 84,455 129336 125932 11,376 10,599 473,853

2itE Accumulated depreciation ~ (23,672) (35,052) (77,551)  (121,368) (120,569)  (10,060) —  (388,272)
BEFE Net carrying amount 50,318 313 6,904 7,968 5363 1,316 10,599 85,581

R=Z-2F  At1Api2010,

A-8 net of accumulated

EEiliE4) depreciation and

TERRE impairment 50,318 3,113 6,904 7,968 5,363 1,316 10,599 85,581
wE Additions - 362 1,419 6,991 1,593 — 18,929 29,294
KEEHER Depreciation provided

e during the year (1,507) (2,891) (3,235) (3,758) (3,800) (173) —  (15,364)
HeE Disposals — — (7 (73) (1) — — (81)
HE Transfers - 2 — - - — (42) —
&5 E5 Exchange realignment 967 112 69 191 42 30 250 1,661

RZB-——-% At31 March 2011,
ZA=+—-B"  netof accumulated
EHRE deprecation and
FERFE impairment 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1,173 29,736 101,091

RZE-——F At 31 March 2011:

ZA=t-8:
BA Cost 75,408 25,451 84,853 113,024 127,915 11,332 29,736 467,719
ZHMER Accumulated depreciation

BE and impairment (25,630) (24,713) (79,703)  (101,705) (124,718)  (10,159) —  (366,628)
REFE Net carrying amount 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1,173 29,736 101,091
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

14. Y% BEKRRE (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

& Group
HELH HE-£E BE I8
KT NEEE kR REE  RI# nE ERIE a5
Leasehold Furniture, Toolings
land and leasehold ~ fixturesand ~ Plantand and Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements  equipment  machinery moulds  vehicles in progress Total
TER TER TER TEx TR TEx TR iR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
—E-EF 31 March 2010
ZA=1-H
RZZENE At 1 April 2009:
A—R:
A Cost 74,026 39,010 86,261 128,493 124,887 10,803 797 464277
Z2IHE Accumulated depreciation  (22,222) (32,967) (76,345)  (118,186)  (114,865) (9,699) —  (374,284)
REFE Net carrying amount 51,804 6,043 9,916 10,307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
RZZEELE At 1 April 2009, net of
A-B'B accumulated depreciation
NBREFHE and impairment
REE 51,804 6,043 9,916 10,307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
nE Additions — 27 1,057 4,642 2,685 573 10,876 19,860
REEHR Depreciation provided during
E the year (1,486) (4,038) @074 (5063 (6589) (361) — 1610
HE Disposals — — (6) (1,918) (755) — — (2,679)
E=E Transfers — 1,074 — — — — (1,074) —
ERE7 Exchange realignment — 7 1 — — — — 18
RZZ-%F At 31 March 2010, net of
=B=1+-HB>  accumulated deprecation
SMBREFTE  andimpaiment
RiAE 50,318 3113 6,904 7,968 5,363 1316 10,599 85,581
RZIE-ZF At 31 March 2010:
ZR=1-8:
A Cost 73,990 38,165 84,455 129336 125932 11,376 10599 473,853
ZHFERAE  Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (23,672) (35,052) (77,551)  (121,368)  (120,569)  (10,060) —  (388272)
REFEE Net carrying amount 50318 3,113 6,904 7,968 5,363 1316 10599 85581
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

14. Y% BERZE (8) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
RBEHRLRXEFBHELIHEEFT 2 The net book values of the Group’s leasehold land and
BREFEESNWT : buildings at the end of the reporting period are analysed as
follows:

—E——F ZZE-ZF

2011 2010

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

REBZHEHAEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 8,577 8,857
Kbz EHEE Medium term leases in Mainland China 41,201 41,461
49,778 50,318

15. BN HEHERHE 15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
K&
Group

—B-——& C—Z-%F

2011 2010

FEx FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

HEUBE—Hz2EREE Carrying amount at 1 April 17,601 18,055
REAFESHER (ko) Recognised during the year (note 6) (464) (454)
[EHE Exchange realignment 394 —
R=B=+—HzZEEE Carrying amount at 31 March 17,531 17,601

FAFERNRIE RER Current portion included in prepayments,

Htt KRR 2 REE D  deposits and other receivables (449) (459)
FEREH D Non-current portion 17,082 17,142
HELHURPREEUPFHEAEF The leasehold lands are held under a medium term lease and
B are situated in Mainland China.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
—E——%=H=+—H
31 March 2011

16.

17.

IE 7 B & A K 16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS
KE
Group
—E-—F CZZT-ZF
2011 2010
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ROA—AB: At 1 April:
AR Cost 37,795 37,033
2t EERBE Accumulated amortisation and impairment (34,784) (31,837)
BRI FE Net carrying amount 3,011 5,196
HREA—HB2ZHA Cost, net of accumulated amortisation and
HEFTEHENEE impairment, at 1 April 3,011 5,196
EHES Exchange realigment 22 —
1B hn— A S BE B Additions — internal development 296 762
FEBERE (MFe) Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) (2,064) (2,947)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 1,265 3,011
R=ZA=+—8: At 31 March:
%N Cost 38,128 37,795
HFt#BERRE Accumulated amortisation and impairment (36,863) (34,784)
BREFE Net carrying amount 1,265 3,011
B B Rl fE = 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AT
Company
—E-—F5 ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FExT FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETRE R Unlisted investments, at cost 269,334 269,334
FE U B A B BR R Due from subsidiaries 767,245 767,237
1,036,579 1,036,571
W ORE" Less: Impairment * (366,334) (346,334)
670,245 690,237
FE BT B A B BR R (F5E40) Due to subsidiaries (note 40) (197,465) (195,314)

S (EB)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



MBBRME (B)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

17. B A T fE= (8) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

# HRAEEETHEARAFESRS
B 18 ¥ E B Bk M {E269,334,000%
T (=& — & £ :269,334,0005% 7t )
’767,245,000%8 T (= & — T F:
767,237,000 7t ) (K 0 BR & B &5 18
A ZETHRLTRERIRFE R
R E R - F84120,000,00058 8 (ZF —
Z & © 32,000,000 7T) Z R ER EUW
M A R BRI o

MEAREDBESESMNT

# Impairments were recognised for interests in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries with a carrying amount of
HK$269,334,000 (2010: HK$269,334,000) and
HK$767,245,000 (2010: HK$767,237,000) (before deducting
the impairment loss), respectively, because certain subsidiaries of
the Group have been making loss persistently. During the year,
an additional impairment of HK$20,000,000 (2010:
HK$32,000,000) was recognised on the amounts due from
subsidiaries.

The movement in the impairment of interests in subsidiaries is
as follows:

¥ /N

Company
—E-—-F ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RMA—H At 1 April 346,334 314,334
BEEEER Impairment losses recognised 20,000 32,000
MN=BA=+—H At 31 March 366,334 346,334

N0 AR E IR E R E B AR E M
DA Z A= KB BURR - LG R M
BRARAZEZEAREMRETR
FBERMBELARAE FTRIBZBES
SREETBHRRARFHBARREE -

RERT-ZEERAEEZREWKKHELQ
7 BR $%3,000,0008 T (Z & — B F :
3,000,000 T) B A B BRMREHR A
F|IEW RERERTERE - ZNE
ZEEHEEHAEQAFEEE - EERE
MREMSEEN MEBLARZEHKRET
SAEREHRETEAREE &
REBERREATBIERE -

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses the
prospects and financial position of its subsidiaries, on an
individual basis, as to whether there is any indication of
impairment of its interests in subsidiaries or any impairment loss
previously recognised for subsidiaries in prior years may no
longer exist or may need to be adjusted accordingly.

Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$3,000,000
(2010: HK$3,000,000) which are repayable within twelve
months, the balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors, the balances with subsidiaries are not repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period
except for the amounts aforementioned and are therefore
shown in the statement of financial position as non-current.
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Bt AR MY (BE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E-——F=A=+-—H

31 March 2011

17. B AT HER (B8) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
TEWBATZHEBENOT : Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
T AR S BRITZERE ERAR LR E
=L R i B = IR A B ZESH FTEER
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name operations capital Company Principal activities
HE F:3
Direct Indirect
EERNMREXARAT e 1007 7T — 100 REEZER
Concept Technology IndustriesLimited  HongKong HK$100 Investmentholding
Favourable Outcome Limited* KEBELHEE 1£7T — 100 RELZR
British Virgin Islands Us$1 Investmentholding
("BVI")
REBRLEENEFERLAA HEARLNE 45,000,000 7T — 100 HERHEEEFEM
Global Asia High-tech Electronics (ThED, HK$45,000,000 Manufactureand
Co.,Ltd. ™" The People’s Republic of trading of electronic
China(The “PRC")/ products
Mainland China
Group Sense (China) Limited* KERELHEE EVH 100 — REER
BVI Us$1 Investmentholding
Group Sense (Dongguan) Limited*  RBEZEE /T E 10% 7T — 100 BBEME
BVI/Mainland China us$10 Property holding
Group Sense (Holding) Limited* REBELZ#ES 3,000% 7T 100 — REER
BVI US$3,000 Investmentholding
Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited* KERELHEE EVH 100 — BREER
BVI Us$1 Investmentholding
BEEWHHERAA" [: 33+ 100% 7T 100 — REER
Group Sense Cyberspace Limited* Samoa US$100 Investment holding
BERRAH BE ERk — 100 RFAREEEFER
Group Sense Limited HongKong 1,000 T Designandtrading
BRERE of electronic products
FEREEREE
%13 200,00038 7T
Ordinary shares
HK$1,000
Non-voting 5%
deferredshares
HK$200,000 @
Group Sense Manufactory HERLEE /TE 127t — 100 RMEFEM
Company Limited BVI/Mainland China US$1 NIRRT
Provision of
subcontracting
services for electronic
products

S (EB)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——5=R=t—H
31 March 2011

17. B A T fE= (8) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMmRL M/ BRTZERE rREEGRE
=L RiBE = il B Ak B ZEDH TEEH
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name operations capital Company Principal activities
HE &
Direct Indirect
REHERRAT B8 2B — 100 REZR
Group Sense Manufactory Hong Kong HK$2 Investmentholding
Company Limited
EEBBHRBRERAE &8 2B — 9895 RIARHEEEFEM
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited HongKong HK$2 Designand trading of
electronic products
EEPDAZRAERA A HEHS EER 98.95 — REZR
Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited Cayman/slands 2,115,837% T Investmentholding
ABBER
17,182% 7T
Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837
Series A
preferred shares
US$17,182
BEZLEHRARLT 8 1007 7T — 9895 RIARBEESFERM
Group Sense PDA Limited HongKong HK$100 Designandtrading of
electronic products
BEZANE (BB BRAR BB 100 7T — 100 REZR
Group Sense Software Technology HongKong HK$100 Investmentholding
(Hong Kong)Limited
KR INT A+ B 60,000,000 A & — 100 REFRHEEETER
Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense* Japan JPY60,000,000 Designand trading of
electronic products
Supreme Style Technology KERELHEE 100E 7T — 100 BEER
Limited* BVI US$100 Investmentholding
BERPAABHRARR HEL/HE A R #50,000,000 7T — 70 R REESF
BRAF ThePRC/ RMB50,000,000 EmREMH
Mainland China Designand trading of
electronic products
andsoftware
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MBBRME (B)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

17.

18. 2

B BB~ Rl (FR)

M EZHEQF-

Q EERMITEMNEERRENEER
RALRMEARRASZESHLE
FARRAEINRAELREZE
M REREEERSEEIMASIR -

B) RHABERLZFIEEDRE-

O RREBZKEMMBEEARA MR
KERTEN BB R S T E & o

EREFIEZA/Y A EBZAFE
EEREAREIARLTEBEREF

BB s2MBAR -ESRA  BH
HWHBARZHFEEEHERBR
TR e

HEZEHEE#ES

17.

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:
(1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

(2)  The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
the company or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

(3)  Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the PRC.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

&

Group
—B-—-F ZE-ZF
2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEEFE Share of net assets 964 1,464
g TsES] Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
7,644 8,144
W —HEZEF BRI Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity 10,626 4,978
bR ,J'JC{E Less: Impairment” (1,600) —
16,670 13,122
ElR—HRZHERERDEERL The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity included in
Cikz: %JE%‘*EﬁnEF‘ AEEAR RER interests in jointly-controlled entities is unsecured, interest-free
ﬂlﬁliﬁﬁﬂﬂ %%w% HEZEFE and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
EHBETEERSHRET =@ directors, the balance with the jointly-controlled entity is not

ﬁ Wf**aa E&(EMTAﬁM%ﬂklﬂﬁﬂwu
%3F/}|b§ﬂ°

# EEEAZME%TZ AEEHE
BEESSFE RCREEE
10,626,000%75 RMBRAEBEAR)
(=ZZ—Z 5 4,978,000 7T) ZFEUW
—HEEHEERRBERRE-

repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and is therefore shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position as non-current.

# An impairment was recognised for the amount due from a
jointly-controlled entity with a carrying amount of
HK$10,626,000 (before deducting the impairment loss) (2010:
HK$4,978,000) because this jointly-controlled entity of the
Group has been making loss persistently.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——f=RA=t—H
31 March 2011

18. AR EHERER (&)

PR — £ 42 0 B B TR SORLE 4 2
BBHUT :

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of amounts
due from a jointly-controlled entity are as follows:

EE
Group
—E2-—-F5 Z—E2-ZF
2011 2010
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
READ At the beginning of year — _
EERREEIE Impairment loss recognised 1,600 —
REK At the end of year 1,600 —

HEEZEHERZFEOT

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

P ERild
BRfT ZERRLS ARk
1 ROFHE AR B RRKE PH TEER
Particulars  Place of Percentage of
ofissued  incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held  registration interest power sharing Principal activities
HENKBERLE 700,000  FiE 35 35 35 B RIAREER
Neoplatec Technology HK$700,000  HongKong R E E &
Company Limited Manufacture, design
andtrading of
in-mould technology
related products
EENEEERE AR#5401550%  #E 19.78 20 1978 HERHEET
BR2E (EEHZ] RMB5,401,550  ThePRC BEEM
Chongging New Standard Manufactureand trading
Medical Equipment of electronic medical
Co., Ltd.(“Chongging appliances

New Standard”)

Rt EEERR AL TS
B

EEFBUBRR BT EUL =
A=+—ARFHA - AREIHY
REDRBZHAEHERR— A -
AE=A=+-BMMZEAXSH
3R -

The above interests in jointly-controlled entities are indirectly
held by the Company.

The financial statements of Chongging New Standard have the
financial year end of 31 December. The Group’s financial
statements are adjusted for the material transactions of this
jointly-controlled entity between 1 January and 31 March.
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31 March 2011

18. HEEZEFIERER (&) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
THREPFzZAEBLEEES EEGK The following table illustrates the summarised financial
BREE : information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:
—E2——F —E-FF
2011 2010
FH& T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEHEZEFERZ Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ assets
EEREE: and liabilities:
REEE Current assets 1,073 1,268
FREEE Non-current assets 1,055 1,460
nBEE Current liabilities (1,164) (1,264)
BEEFE Net assets 964 1,464

EIEHEEH T 224 Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ results:

WA Revenue 389 354
H g A Other income 46 153
435 507
T H#EEE Total expenses (935) (1,970)
BEERE Loss after tax (500) (1,463)
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31 March 2011

19. & N Bl HES 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
rE
Group
—E-—F5 ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEEEFE Share of net assets = —
FEUNEEE N BBRR Amounts due from associates 10,803 12,168
oA Less: Impairment" (9,350) (9,335)
1,453 2,833
FE U B & 1\ /) BR7X1,453,0008 7t (=& The amounts due from associates of HK$1,453,000 (2010:
— =% 12,833,000 ) NEBEREKE HK$2,833,000), included in the Group’s current assets, are
BERBEEY AEER RERE unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
EEMA o
# HAREEAEEBT 2BE N RSE # An impairment was recognised for the amounts due from
#:18E B M E Bt Bk {& 10,803,000 associates with a carrying amount of HK$10,803,000 (before
B CRNBRBEEBEN(ZE—2 deducting the impairment loss) (2010: HK$12,168,000) because
F:12,168,0008 t) 2 FEUNEEE D F) these associates of the Group have been making loss
R TR RE - persistently.
WS A RRFRRERE2EEW The movements in the provision for impairment of amounts
T due from associates are as follows:
rE
Group
—E-—F5 ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RELD At the beginning of year 9,335 9,335
E X E Exchange realignment 15 —
RER At the end of year 9,350 9,335
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

19. BEE N AR (B)

19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

KERTENER B R ST & o

FRENEEIAHHEAEEZAEE
EBEEEARYLEYHARLTETEEF
BEXrEFs2BHENT -EERE R
HEMBLLAANEBTSERERB
RIAR -

ErBERAMAER M HEHREK —
B MBFEBE=ZRA=1T—H-

AEEBEE2BELARE  HEH
AARA-—2EMBRAABAEZRER
$O

HREMHEREQNABEBBAE
BREEATES HAEBCKILTE
RHEELEENE#NEFER A&
ERAFERBEFZABREGLHEE
NAEEE DB B446,1828 T (=& —
FTF  FE 95,1388 ;T) & 5,558,240
BT (ZE—F%F 16,004,422 7T) °

TEMENTZHBENOT : Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:
rE
e #eT MR EBitrE#
=x IR0 5 1E ZfiB REzESHE 0 FEEHR
Percentage of
ownership
Particulars Place of interest
of issued incorporation/  attributable to
Name shares held registration the Group Principal activities
ERBEBEEARRAR 3,500 7T BB 3 IREEREE
(Frgsk) * HK$3,500 Hong Kong Manufacture and
ACME Tech Precision Moulds trading of moulds
Limited (“ACME")*
BMEFREBRAF 45,0007 7T i 45 mEK
(E:Pi e ) HK$45,000 Hong Kong Inactive
Sinocard Technology Limited
(“Sinocard”)
* REEBZKEHMBEARHEM R * Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or another member

firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The financial statements of the above associates are
coterminous with those of the Group, which have financial
year ending 31 March.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity
shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of ACME and Sinocard because the share of losses of
these associates exceeded the Group’s interests in the
associates. The Group’s unrecognised share of profit of these
associates for the current year and their accumulated losses at
31 March 2011 amounted to HK$446,182 (2010: net loss of
HK$95,138) and HK$5,558,240 (2010: HK$6,004,422),
respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—Z-——f=RA=t—H
31 March 2011

19. & N EIHERE () 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TRHEPHNESEERB 2 AE BB The following table illustrates the summarised financial
ENTEEREE information of the Group’s associates extracted from their

management accounts:

—E——F ZZE-ZF

2011 2010

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

EE Assets 5,606 6,358
afE Liabilities (18,333) (20,188)
A Revenue 7.665 5,936
REERR(FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,001 (146)

20. T HERE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
rEH
Group

—E-—F5 ZZE-ZF

2011 2010

FEx FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRARZIELETRAKRE Unlisted equity investments, at cost 48,153 36,094
A Less: Impairment” (10,000) (10,000)
38,153 26,094

# HRREXBEXE HEmKREE # An impairment was recognised for an unlisted investment with
32,055,000 7t (5 31 BROR B &5 18 AT) a carrying amount of HK$32,055,000 (before deducting the
(ZZE—FF :32,0550008T) Z— impairment loss) (2010: HK$32,055,000) due to the non-
FLETRERREE - REAFRRE performance of the investment. There was no movement in the

WHEEEH (ZE—FF &) impairment during the year (2010: Nil).
LB EREFLTRABSRE The above investments consist of investments in unlisted equity
HisEERATHEERE - securities which were designated as available-for-sale
investments.
21. RS 21. LONG TERM DEPOSITS
EENEBRHRARE -HEEEHZ None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
CREEE BT EBRTHE- assets relate to deposits for which there was no recent history
of default.
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

22. & 22. INVENTORIES
rE
Group
—E-—F CZZT-ZF
2011 2010
FTER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
A Raw materials 76,859 77,416
TR Work in progress 14,054 22,724
B Finished goods 25,150 25,174
116,063 125,314
23. EWE Z RN 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES
rE
Group
—E-——-F ZZ-FF
2011 2010
FTER FHERT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEWE B Trade receivables 97,557 100,356
R Impairment (7,133) (15,739)
90,424 84,617
AEEHEEF2EZFTEURFEENK The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
NET AR —KNFO0ENOK ° credit. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days. Each
BEEFEERAGEEHEE K& customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
BREFHERES 2 ERREET maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and to
BREHNTEFEEERBREZERK- minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
EREEETHENAN 2HE - E senior management. Trade receivables are interest-free. Please
WESGERRFFFNE-EERKBRER refer to note 42 for details of credit risk management.
HEE SRR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

23. EWE Z R (58) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
LTAERESEREFUNZIBHAR An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
BREFHETEMRBEERERZ2E®RD reporting period, based on the payment due dates and net of
b provisions, is as follows:

rE

Group
—E-—-F ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0Z60K 0-60 days 74,394 66,633
61 290K 61-90 days 1,913 7,347
HBiBo0ok Over 90 days 14,117 10,637
90,424 84,617
EWEZRFBERFEZSBHNOT : The movements in the provisions for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

rEE

Group
—E——-% C—B-TF
2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA] At the beginning of year 15,739 17,069
A 1] Ui [B] 1 il BR 2 BR =X Amount written off as uncollectible (8,706) (1,330)
EXE Exchange realigment 100 —
REL At the end of year 7,133 15,739
FHREREZRFBERESEM/EER Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
KR EEWE S R 7,133,000 T receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
(ZZ — =% :15739,000/% 7t ) & ik receivables of HK$7,133,000 (2010: HK$15,739,000) with a
HEH11,642008 T (ZFE—ZF: gross carrying amount of HK$11,642,000 (2010:
22,378,000 5T ) o A B LK EEUWE HK$22,378,000). The individually impaired trade receivables
SERNEEXNLEHNREBEER  BH relate to customers that were in default or delinquent in
EURELEERBKER 2 — &80 & payments and only a portion of the receivables is expected to
SETENTCELREEEMKTR be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other

FEMEELR credit enhancements over these balances.
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

23.

24.

FEWE 5 &R (&)

WHEMBHNLRERETREZER
BZRAZIRE DT :

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

rEH

Group
—E--F5 Z—EZ-Z2F
2011 2010
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
KB HI S IR E Neither past due nor impaired 72,500 64,280
BEE—ZmEA 1 to 2 months past due 228 2,323
BHME=1A 2 to 3 months past due 1,290 7,347
BEAEBE=EA Over 3 months past due 11,897 4,028
85,915 77,978

RBHHTNEREZBRRABRK
BOBNEFELBLERERICE -

CBHMEREREZRURIBRAE
HZETHERFNEF -RE\EBER
% ARABEBRE ARNEEERY
BEARE IRABEHRDAZHER
O - #EE 7R I 25 A BRAE R E S o
AEBUTERESEERSTEEMEA
mBEMEEERS -

BATOE RS RE AT
g B TR — A AR 2

HEEERABHTERE LES
MEEBRNOCHLE|IERTE ZEW

$0E -

24,

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — GROUP AND COMPANY

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.
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31 March 2011

25. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

25. ;éﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁa)kﬁé%z}ﬁ

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

rE
Group
—E-—F5 ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETESES RAFE  Unlisted debt securities, at fair value
—BEENEBEEFNERE — Debentures with fixed interest rates from
55%Z&75% 2R 5.5% to 7.5% per annum with maturity
R -E—ZEF dates from 8 November 2010 to
+—ANHBZE 28 April 2014
—E-NHFEWA
—+NHL 8,450 40,654

EXRZE-—FR-_ZF-2F=H
ST -HZFLETESESCRER
RAHREE-

BEAVERABRSERZREZATE
DRBEMREXTBERKZERE
AREEE -

RZE-ZFF=A=1+—H ' A&EH
H h BRE {8 16,025,00038 JT #% X F{E T
ABHERZBESHIKE USSR
SEZIRITHEATE (MEE30) ©

26. fTEEM T A

The above unlisted debt securities at 31 March 2011 and 2010
were classified as held for trading.

The fair values of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are determined based on the quoted bid prices at the close of
business at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s investments at fair value
through profit or loss with the carrying amount of
HK$16,025,000 were pledged as security for the Group'’s
banking facilities (note 30).

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AEE
Group
—F——F —2-ZF
2011 2010

BE afE gE afE

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

THERT THERT FHERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RHNIEESYN Forward currency contracts 227 — — 35
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B mRME (B)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

26. fTEE@MTI A () 26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ERNMESN 2 REEEANFEMR
Be LM RTEEMTAEZRS 5
BKERITERABDRIBERITRINL

AEBT L FRERBIESH UE
BHEZRRBK HELTTEHE P
EZE e EEH A HEEERITETA
2 AFPES 291,008 T (=2
—ZF 97,0008 T)  BFFA (=
Z—ZF MR REAFRZERA °

(continued)

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
same as their fair values. The above transactions involving
derivative financial instruments are transacted with Wing Lung
Bank Limited and China Merchant Bank Co., Ltd.

The Group has entered into the above forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair
value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to a gain
of HK$291,000 (2010: a loss of HK$97,000) were credited
(2010: charged) to profit or loss during the year.

27. B4 REE£EEIER 27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RKE NN
Group Company
—®-——% -T-TF —B-—-F _B-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FExT FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
WERIBITAER  Cash and bank balances 132,537 79,311 199 197
TEHF Time deposits 31,363 122,032 — —
HERIRS Cash and cash equivalents
Z£EER 163,900 201,343 199 197

RBEEHR REBUARE (A
RENDFE2ESRRSZEEEE
£21,144,0008 T (= & — & F:
31,371,000 ) s ARBFRAEBEHRR
BRAEEMEE M REPBHIEE
BiEpIREE EERVESERE
AEBEEAZBERETRBELE
BHRITBARBLRBRAEMEN -

RTBEDRBERTESARITERA
RZZBHANEREFE - RFAREH
MEREFER BEHEHERZBR
TR NF-RR=ZEAFE  ALEE
B2EREMFERARMIMAE - R
TERERRARFERAERBILN
BRI RCHENRT -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$21,144,000 (2010: HK$31,371,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



% R B e (48)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 March 2011

28. ENESRARENERE

29.

30.

UTRENEZRARENREUN
REPAFEMRBRERRZRED
#r

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due dates, is as
follows:

rEE

Group
—F-——-F ZZ-FF
2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
0E60K 0-60 days 36,240 79,626
61E90K 61-90 days 109 1,585
HBiBoOKX Over 90 days 2,205 2,539
38,554 83,750

BNEZRAEFTIAFNE  B—K
REOREE -

Hitt BN RA K ETAE

HtbENERAREFEELETE
BEmEREE-

M ERITEE

RZE-—ZFTFE=ZA=+—-—H F&£H
BB 816,000,008 T2BEBES R
REBRRFHA- RZZE—FF=
B=+—HB A&EBZRBRRERUK
EE 4 H16,0250008 T LA FERA
Bk ETREERKBPIFE2S) -

29.

30.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 60-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals are interest-free and repayable on
demand.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

At 31 March 2010, the Group had a revolving loan facility
amounting to HK$16,000,000, none of which was utilised as
at the end of the reporting period. At 31 March 2010, the
Group’s revolving loan is secured by the pledge of certain of the
Group’s investments at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$16,025,000 (note 25).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

31. EZLERIE

TEEBEBRBEBRIFHEARE B
E 42016790008 T (Z & —F &
188,449,000 jt) MY B #5148 » I AT it
BIRAEEELEEEBFERNOARNRK
REZRB &M - XREBETRPEESE
43,553,000 7T (ZF—FF : 17,193,000
B MBEEE YIRRR—ZEF
RIKERRERB BRI E LT
EBEE-—BEHAERAHEERBERT
BUEBHEHNBLATATE A 2B KE
B oHRHEEEMNS  URERIELER
BEE -

BEFEARAMBEEFRERE
RABRI2HELERIEREE
ERzBREABRION 2EHH - 2
HREEEH-ZEENEF-A-Bi%E
¥oUERAR-ZERLFEFTZ-RA=T
—HZREEZBA - &b P EEIE
REEFMBRZEERZBITARK
th ek BT SR U AR R o B
SEMmMS  EABERRS% Bt &K
EEABRRPBERL 2HMEBARRZ
ZENF-RB-HURELEZBAM
DIk ZREBRE A -

RZE——F=A=+—H F&H
YWEFRPERLZHB LT B
ARRHEBEHNERBRRELRFM
EECZEMNBREEHHBERTEL
HE - BERAE UEHWBELF B
AR RHEBEHNEBETRRRTK
ARED IR ERF - RI|ER - BEF
RPBENHBLATRARZEHERER
B WAEEEBEAEREZH (25—

ARBBEEBRRXNWRELENE
FRGBERR -

31. DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong before IRD
assessment of HK$201,679,000 (2010: HK$188,449,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$43,553,000
(2010: HK$17,193,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised by
these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding dividend taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings, that are subject to withholding dividend
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates, and jointly-
controlled entities established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. There was no significant
temporary difference associated with investments in subsidiaries
and jointly-controlled entities in Mainland China at the end of
the reporting period (2010: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

32. A&

32. SHARE CAPITAL

—E-—-F ZE-ZF
2011 2010
TER FHERT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE Authorised:
3,000,000,000 g & B 3,000,000,000 (2010: 3,000,000,000)
HE010BTEBR ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(== —F 4 :3,000,000,000 %) 300,000 300,000
ERTRHR: Issued and fully paid:
1,197,663,029 8% = I 1,197,663,029 (2010: 1,197,663,029)
HECI10B TEER ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(ZZ—2% :1,197,663,0291%) 119,766 119,766

33. B R RAERTE

RRBRBELZRETE (S
EEHMB- RoIRBRERAEERY
BRERHBAFEHEZERMZAER
SRE-FECEERSREBREL
RRACEE (BEBYUFHITES)
rEEBCHMEEISRABE A%
BEEAREMEAEEEXEBEARZ
AT - FER-ZZ2-_FWNA-HW
AR (BRIELLE A S X FEHRERT A
R BZBBER BRPHTF-

REBEFASENRES TFRERTHEZ
BARREZROBE  TEBAL
ZEARBREETERRAQAEN
REEEITRMDZ10%  TEFHNZ
SERZEENEMELHHEE
ELARABREMAFERTZROEE
REARAREMEREERITRGE Z
1% o R IR BB B T R IRE R
— S RHEARRRASESRRAE-

BAARZEE BETHAERE
ERFEFSTIMcHEALIREE
SRABRELBERANTABLIHYTE
EELRE BN MMEMI12{8 B
BOAQABAZEERRIE LT
EEYFESECHBAIREESL
ABREMBTZRONBEEBEAAT
EMEEBEETRMZ201%RNE @R
3 2 #{E#B1B5,000,0008 T REBFHE
BARABRMHDER) AIEAEERR
ERBEARS ALK

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of motivating, attracting and retaining eligible
participants whose contribution are vital to the long term
growth and profitability of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees or
officers of the Group, advisers or consultants of the Group, or
any person that have business relationship with the Group. The
Scheme was adopted on 2 April 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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33. B RAERT 8 (&)

BRFATEZEERFHBRIA21EE X
HR BHELRBRESHRIBIZR
BAREBEUERELRRE-ERD
BEERRENTERIHESRE
BEEEREHEAARRBRIERESERE
BRERFEERAZBHER-

BEEARAREZTEEDHESRE
HEATERTIHANRSENAQA
BOEBEARERTEREBIAN
FrEi e mE: (A2 TARBEEL
RRERTAMASEARS B EBRFT
FrEcFHRHE: KA a KRG
MEE -

EARARBEEIRBTFHEEARBDRE
FRBREZLREZED -

RAFR  RETE THELRRE
fisf RATAE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 business days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period
and ends on a date which is determinable by the directors and
is not later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer, and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

S —E-%F
2011 2010
hniE 3 7R InfEFE 1 RIRFE
TEE L 4= THEE L=
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
BT F & BT F @4
K Bk
HK$ HK$
pershare ‘000 pershare ‘000
REA At the beginning of year 0.569 17,280 0.676 33,738
FREW Forfeited during the year 0.582 (590) 0.605 (449)
FRERY Lapsed during the year 0.554 (8,425) 0.792 (16,009)
REK At the end of year 0.584 8,265 0.569 17,280
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

A & _E’:E_ .
33. BERRERE (&) 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
RAEAFER  RBFE ELAREZE The movements of the outstanding share options under the
BERAOT Scheme during the year are as follows:
AREHE
Number of share options
iy BRARE
R® —E--F BERRE AT B% RE%
—Z2-ZF =A ZREBH (BEERMA) ARE ARE
mA-B FREL FAGTE FRARK FA%X%R =t+-8 (B.R.5) (B.A.5) 2@~ HREAH"
Exercise periods
of share options  Exercise At grant
Names or At Granted Exercised Forfeited  Lapsed At Dates of grant (both dates  prices of dates of
2RE categories 1April  during  during  during  during  31March of share options* inclusive) share share
HZHER of participants 2010 theyear theyear theyear theyear 2011 (DD.MM.YYYY)  (DD.MM.YYYY)  options** options”™”
BT o
=1 sk
HK$ HK$
pershare pershare
=2 Directors
EREEZ  Tam MuiKaWai, 400,000 — e — (400,000 — 07.08.2006 15.06.2007 £ to 0.554 0.560
Vivian 14.06.2010
KAKE  Kazuhiro Otani 800,000 — - — (800,000 - 07.08.2006  15.06.2007 Zto 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
800,000 — — — — 800,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008 £ to 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
Rk Lee Koon Hung 800,000 — — — (800,000 — 07.082006  15.06.2007 £to 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008 Zto 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
EE¥ Fok Ting Yeung, 400,000 — — —  (400,000) — 07.08.2006  15.06.2007 Zto 0.554 0.560
James 14.06.2010
400,000 — — — — 400,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008 Fto 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
ERA Luk Chui Yung, 500,000 — — — (500,000 — 19.07.2006  15.06.2007 Zto 0.554 0.560
Judith 14.06.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008 £to 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011

5,700,000 — — — (2,900,0000 2,800,000
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33. B RAERT 8 (&)

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

AREHE
Number of share options
® BARRE
i3 —g2--F BRARE iR B% REX
—E-BF =A ZREBH (BEERWMA) RRE ARE
mA-B FREYH FATE FRARR FA%¥ =t+-8 (B.8.5) (B.B.F) zf@E~ BEAH"
Exercise periods
of share options  Exercise At grant
Names or At Granted Exercised Forfeited  Lapsed At Dates of grant (both dates prices of dates of
SHE categories 1April  during  during  during  during  31March of share options* inclusive) share share
HEREH of participants 2010 theyear theyear theyear the year 2011 (DD.MM.YYYY)  (DD.MM.YYYY)  options** options™”
BT BT
=1 BR
HK$ HK$
pershare pershare
Hit Others
Es Employees 5,565,000 — —  (40,000) (5,525,000) 19.07.2006 15.06.2007 £ to 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
6,015,000 — — (550,000 — 5,465,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008 Fto 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
11,580,000 — — (590,000) (5,525,000) 5,465,000
& Total 17,280,000 — — (590,000) (8425,000) 8,265,000

RAFRRITEELCRREL RN

* BERREZEEHAERHAMER
ITEHRIEE L o

= BERREZTHREAZRERIA
RET2HABRARARRN 2 H AL
UEH L& -

o RELRRERHBAHAEEZAR
ARELEZELARERE B
—BXZ ARz HE-

REFFERNRKZELARRED 2
BEB-BER-ZT——R-Z-—%
FZA=Z+t—BLFEER ALREHE
RENEAAREXLH -BE-F—
—RZE-ZF=ZRA=+t-HLFE
W MERE BT RIREE

]EHR A QAR B F 8158,265,000
RIOTEELARE - REAQLTIRIT
BAEE ZEITERTELRARE
1% 8 Bh 2% 178,265,000 8 A< A T ZE HM &
BRR - B E827,000/8 THEIMR AR K
51 3% 17 B8 = A A 204,000,000 7T A% 19

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding during the
year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

***  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of
grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on
the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the
options.

All share options granted in prior years have been fully vested
and no further share option expense is recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010. No share option was
granted during the year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
8,265,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
8,265,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$827,000 and share premium of
HK$4,000,000 (before issue expenses).

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



MBmRME (B)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—2——F=Zf=1-H

31 March 2011

33. B RAERT 8 (&)

34.

RUESTEHERAEBTH X2 FRE
st £1/58,265,000 K 1T £ B L R IR & -
HEREBARQACEETRMN0.69% °

(R

(@)

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the

Company had 8,265,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented 0.69% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

34. RESERVES

KE (@) Group
TEEREAEERBEFE 2 The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
EEERHEEBH 2RI BERE therein for the current and prior years are presented in
FIVEGEREZEHRA - the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
38 of the financial statements.
REBzERHFEEBERERERE—ILL The Group's special reserve represents the difference
EFERQARZRM LT AIFTET between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
ZAEEBEAMBE KBRS acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the
BROzHEBE AXBEERMOM listing of the Company’s shares in 1993, and over the
BTZARNARNHEBEZEESE - nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.
VNGNS (b) Company
R 13 #A RE EEIR
BER B HEERE EREE it EE “m
Share Capital Share
premium  Contributed redemption option  Accumulated
account surplus reserve  reserve losses Total
M= FEx FER TExT TExR TER TER
Note ~ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZENEF At 31 March 2009
=Z=A=t+-H 409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (27,647) 407,314
rEELXEBE Total comprehensive
o) loss for the year 11 — — — — (32,908)  (32,908)
N-ZE-ZF At 31 March 2010
=A=+-H 409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (60,555) 374,406
rEE2EEE Total comprehensive
Fak] loss for the year " — — — — (21,496)  (21,496)
R-ZB——F At 31 March 2011
=ZA=+-H 409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (82,051) 352,910
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34. #1fE (&)

(b)

AT ()

KRAZHBANBEBERE—NN
=FARQAF 2B LA FTET
ZEBEAMBRBE2HBEARR
BZAFEBRARBREERND
MBETZAATARMEEZ I
Do RBEBBAREAFE1981 —
BARATELETFERT  UBA
EfRACREREREEL S
K °

BARRERBEEECSEHER
TEZEARBREZLFE
HRMBHRERWFE242URD A
ERIAXZ2EHHE - EM
BELRRETER  LEES
ERERMEERK-

35. ZEBHETRERME

TEFRERS

@)

(if)

BEz—_Z2——%=A=+—HL
FER AEECE 23530008
nZEHZSERZATHEER
ﬁo

BE=-F - —F%=RA=+-—
BEFER A"EBCEHKEER
4,600,000 7T Z @Bl H AEZ
FEASRERR o

34. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares in 1993, over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company
may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are exercised.

35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(if)

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group has
transferred HK$2,353,000 from long term deposit to
available-for-sale investments.

The Group had Tax Reserve Certificate valued
HK$4,600,000 which was used to settle tax payable
during the year ended 31 March 2011.
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36. RAEE

(a)

BE-—EZN\E=ZA=1+—HLt
FER —BIURBHEEDS (&
EANDEEBAERARNER M
BAm (®WEADREHFRAD @
BWEABRR—EBE627571E T
(#94,895,000/8 ) &5 B
AEBBHESAER—HAHBHAC
EENF+-_A=ZB 2R KHE
(ZHmED  KRBERZBEAR
([ZHRZED Bt WEATBAE
MESEARERBER LEBR
HEANERZBE KRBHRFRHA
BHEZBEMRAEZERE X
BEfFzZER B ®HEAMD
REARBREBER BRESA
EEHETEEEE100,000E T
UEREAFHA2EMBEREE
ERFMNERAE (RERER] -

ERTHEBERERAERER
ERFBENELE  WEAZRAE
MR/ RZHRRELHBE RN
WoOBREAEZHRRRRER
BEREBHF REAFE E6BZ
BEHNEZREERRZFRRK
RRAURBE-—TER -FAQF
ESRREANLKELERE (=

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@

During the year ended 31 March 2008, an independent
service provider (the “Plaintiff”) issued a legal proceeding
in Hong Kong against a subsidiary of the Group (the
"Defendant”) and a claim against the Defendant for a
sum of US$627,571 (approximately HK$4,895,000). The
Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant was in breach of a
service agreement dated 3 December 2004 (the
“Agreement”) and failed to make payments in
accordance with the Agreement (the “Claim”). In this
connection, the Defendant also filed a claim against the
Plaintiff and alleged that the Plaintiff was in breach of the
Agreement in failing to design and develop the products
in substantial conformance to the functional specification
as defined in the Agreement. Accordingly, the Defendant
made a counterclaim against the Plaintiff for liquidated
damages in the sum of US$100,000 and other damages
to be assessed together with interests and costs (the
“Counterclaim”).

Based on the available evidence and subject to discovery
and expert evidence, the Defendant’s representing
solicitor considered that there were valid defences to the
Claim and the Defendant had a good chance of success
in the Claim and the Counterclaim. During the year,
there was no further progress noted in these Claim and
Counterclaim. Having considered the positive legal
opinion and there is no further progress in these Claim
and Counterclaim during the year, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision is required
to be made (2010: Nil).
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

36. RAEE (&) 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

by RBEEHR EMBHERRPZHE
N ARBEHFBOT :

(b) At the end of the reporting period, details of other
contingent liabilities in the financial statements were as

follows:
rEH AN
Group Company
—B-—-F ZEZ-TF ZE2E-—-F ZE-FF
2011 2010 2011 2010
FERT FERT FERT FERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FEBERTH Guarantees given to
HHEMmMAT  banks in connection
BITZER: with facilities

granted to:
(iG] Subsidiaries - — 82,353 122,317
=N Associates — 13 _ _
— 13 82,353 122,317

RZE——F=A=+—H &
BHAQNBAFRITNERMER
FeROTERBECBHAASTET
(ZE—ZF . 8) MEBLXE
BIERMATHE QAR ZRITH
AEcCEAAZEBRT(ZE—F
£ 1 13,0008 7T) °

7. REHELH 37.

AEERBEEEHEZHEARAEET
EFRBYEREIBES -WXxcHE
BEHDI-—E==t%F-

As at 31 March 2011, the banking facilities granted to
the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks
by the Company were utilised to Nil (2010: Nil), and the
banking facilities guaranteed by the Group to associates
were utilised to Nil (2010: HK$13,000).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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31 March 2011

37. BRLHE L HE (58) 37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)
R—_B——F=F=+—H ' K& At 31 March 2011, the Group had total future minimum lease
HEAABE2EEHERPRRKRED payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
ENHSLE REEEWHTEN follows:
T
rEE
Group
—E-—F CZZT-ZF
2011 2010
FTER FHERT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 6,374 8,244
RE_FEZFRF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(BIEEEWE) 12,571 10,870
BB AEF After five years 4,683 4,287
23,628 23,401
RBEHR RABRREETMEAL At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
EHERYE- significant operating lease arrangements.

38. & IE 38. COMMITMENTS
BREXMEII2RKREHEZTHFRS In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
M REBRBEHRTETIER note 37 above, the Group had the following capital
A commitments at the end of the reporting period:

rEE
Group
—B2-—F CZZ-ZF
2011 2010
THER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ERIERME Contracted, but not provided for:
FLETREREZ Capital contributions payable in investment
EBREHERE in unlisted securities 1,177 —
¥ BERSE Property, plant and equipment 20,225 29,770
RBEER RAFEEME KEIE At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
(ZE—ZFF . J\) o significant commitments (2010: Nil).
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

30 BEAETRF

BRELEMBEHERREMEMFL

(a)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

NREN REER XEEE these financial statements, the Group had the following
THERBEEATRES material transactions with related parties during the year:
rE
Group
—E-—-F ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
Fft &F FExT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BAAEE—HENT Royalty expense charged
IWE 2 A H by an associate of the Group (i) 4,187 1,428
m—HEARBE Purchases of products from
ZEMR an associate (ii) 5,032 6,531
B EF Notes:

i)

(if)

EAEXHEREASE K
BRAARAFAFHENE L
EYERNBEMTELR:
MERREHI R E QR RZ
M BB N B PR 3L 2 R R R R
A e

MBENABECERIRE
HEEENRRTHEIERFZ
NEABERRIRETMELD -

FEBETEEEASHMH

(i) The royalty expense was calculated based on the number
of electronic handheld products sold by a subsidiary of
the Group during the year with the terms as stipulated in
the royalty agreement between the associate and that
subsidiary.

(i) The purchases from an associate were made according to
the published prices and conditions offered by the
associate to its major customers.

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:
—E-—-F ZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEEER Short term employee benefits 13,747 13,120
BRRETEIHE Pension scheme contributions 463 462
TRHEEZEBASE>  Total compensation paid to key
BN 58 management personnel 14,210 13,582

EEMEE-SHBEHRYBRRNW

8o

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8
to the financial statements.
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4. BB s zE€/mI A

FEHENEMTARKRER R ZKREE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

M instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
—B2-—-F rEEH
2011 Group
SREE Financial assets
BEAEERA
BRk2
CREE BX AHEE
—RBEEE REWREX SREE @st
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit Available-for-
or loss — held Loans and sale financial
for trading receivables assets Total
FTHER FTHER THER THER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments = = 38,153 38,153
RE®S Long term deposits = 1,556 = 1,556
EWE Z R Trade receivables = 90,424 = 90,424
S AFEMAFIE Financial assets included in
REREMER prepayments, deposits and
FRZEMEE other receivables — 41,418 — 41,418
FEUE:Z A TIBRF Amounts due from associates = 1,453 = 1,453
& Uy — =) 422 Amount due from a jointly-
BEERX controlled entity (note 18)
(KEzE18) — 9,026 — 9,026
BEAFERA Investments at fair value
BRkzRE through profit or loss 8,450 = = 8,450
eI A Derivative financial instruments 227 = = 227
BeRkEEEE Cash and cash equivalents
R — 163,900 — 163,900
8,677 307,777 38,153 354,607

2011 BFEIRE Annual Report



Bt AR MY (BE)
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

4. BB zE€/mI A

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

= CATEGORY (continued)
—E——-F &
2011 Group
BB HR A
FEZ
cREE Financial liabilities SRER
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TER
HK$'000
ENESRANREMNZE Trade and bills payables 38,554
HAHMERERRENEEZ Financial liabilities included in other
cREE payables and accruals 43,616
82,170
—E-EF &
2010 Group
BAYE
mABER
ZEMEE B AHEE
SREE Financial assets —EEEE REWERX TRMEE Het
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or
loss — held for Loansand  Available-for-sale
trading receivables  financial assets Total
FTAR FTAER FTAR FTAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEEERE Available-for-sale
investments — — 26,094 26,094
ke Long term deposits — 1,556 — 1,556
EWE SRR Trade receivables — 84,617 — 84,617
D ATEMNFIE % $  Finandial assets included in
R E b EUW R prepayments, deposits
ZERMEE and other receivables — 54,227 — 54,227
FEUE: & A REBRF Amounts due from
associates — 2,833 — 2,833
e — tt F 42 Amount due from a jointly-
ZEIES (ff3£18)  controlled entity (note 18) — 4,978 — 4,978
BAFERZAEIREEX Investments at fair value
ZRE through profit or loss 40,654 — — 40,654
Be&RBESLEEEE Cashand cash equivalents — 201,343 — 201,343
40,654 349,554 26,094 416,302
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4. BB zE€/mI A 40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

(#8) CATEGORY (continued)
—E-EF r&EHE
2010 Group
cREE Financial liabilities
BAYE
MABRE RE R R
ZEmas FTEZ
—BEEE THEE @t
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
— held for amortised
trading cost Total
TERT FTAR FAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A E SRR EMNZHE Trade and bills payables — 83,750 83,750
NAHMENERRR Financial liabilities included in other
EitGEzemas payables and accruals — 22,614 22,614
TEemIA Derivative financial instruments 35 — 35
35 106,364 106,399
AT
Company
SRMEE Financial assets
BERERERERR
Loans and receivables
—E-—F5 ZZE-EZF
2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fff B A AR (MTEE17) Interests in subsidiaries (note 17) 667,245 687,237
FE UK Bt B A B BR 7K Due from subsidiaries 3,000 3,000
DIRTEANTIE - RER Financial assets included in prepayments,
HMEWERZESRMERE  deposits and other receivables 200 205
BHekBELESHER Cash and bank balances 199 197
670,644 690,639
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
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40. BER B Pz THE 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
(#8) CATEGORY (continued)
tREE Financial liabilities
BBERAHESRAE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

=E-—-F ZE-ZF
2011 2010
FTER FHET
HKS°000 HK$'000
FETH B A TIBRRR (FfsE17) Due to subsidiaries (note 17) 197,465 195,314
M. AFERAFESER 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY
UAFTEIEzzEEREME The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities except
& TEEIHEERERRATHE available-for-sale investments and investments at fair value
RABSEXRZRENUEREEBESIE: through profit or loss approximate to their carrying amounts
BAERERKETESRNEBHRIE - largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
REBRBAUTEREBUBERE The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
EemMIANATE: disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
E—EB RREEEEIEENEET Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
SHRE KRKAR)EECHW (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
NE¥E liabilities
BB UHERWEENATE Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
BZfERMAEEEG A for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
SEHEESHBEERTR the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
B mHEIE or indirectly
EZE: UWHERMEENAFE: Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
BZAEEMAEEZEG A for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
SEHPFERTREN TS the recorded fair value are not based on observable
HiE (TURBENRAAZE) market data (unobservable inputs)
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—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

41.

42,

NEERDFESEHR (B) 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY (continued)
HN-ZEBE——FE=HB=+—H8 ' &KX&EH As at 31 March 2011, the Group held the following financial
EERATETEZSRIENT : instruments measured at fair value:
R-E——F=FA=+—HUALAFHE Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2011:
FTECEE
E—1E BB E=B et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHET FET FHET FHERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
EAFEEEA  Investments at fair value
B@mKRZELE  through profit or loss 8,450 — — 8,450
fTHE4R I A  Derivative financial
instruments — 227 — 227
BZE ——F=ZA=+—-HLHF During the year ended 31 March 2011, there were no transfers
B BxsE= Jﬁ' Z B E N E of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
%‘I‘%ﬁ B O TREAFEIFTEEARE no transfer into or out of Level 3.
HE=E -
MEERBREEBEERKE  42. INANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

$$l3‘£§é%ﬂlﬂ@%hﬁ~ﬁ§ﬂ&

BEZRAREMERER BERE
HHT? BEQNAR-HLAREHER
ek FEHT%EE K&F&Eﬁmﬂ‘é kA
fi FE A BR K ©

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly comprise
investments, trade and other receivables, cash and short term
deposits, balances with associates and a jointly-controlled
entity, trade and bills payables, and other payables.
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MBBRME (B)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

02 GHABREEEERKE

(48)
AEBERIAEENTEARBE
ERkR RBESREBRIIEERE-
EEERTRERERLERRNK
BT

EERER

AEBzCERRTEREEERE
GERA - ANEBBAEELHRERD
BEEABIEB2EF RZZ—
—F=ZA=+t—-HAIRKREFLHE
KESRRESEBBO%(ZE—F
FBBA%) MEELEFRERE
REINERR EEHAEBMELEE
EREXREEFE - BEEERRE
ERERK AEEEEEBECZR—4AA
E EEETCERE CESHRE
ERRERF URRKEREERIK
EABEK M FAEESTEHE
MESEENERESRR 2T RE S
HoLUBARTATKRE SEELEEN
ZREBE -BIMsS  AEEEER
AXEECEFERBRECEEEET K
8 PR 1K o

HRASEEER T ZEEBE2H
ZHETEE MU BEZREMEHA

_
oA °

FEEHEMEREE (BERAEREAS
ZEEE  THEERE - BR-—HE
EHEEBRBEAARR -RAFE
RABSRZRERBTIETIAR) 2
FERBRBHNFTAE MEAEARZ
B LRESNLETAZRAE:

RAEEFEYREERE SRR
EEMB - H B R B R M 23
W -

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below:

Credlit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group has been largely dependent on a small
number of customers for a substantial portion of its business.
The top five customers represent over 50% (2010: over 49%)
of the amount of trade receivables as at 31 March 2011. The
failure of these customers to make the required payments
could have a substantial negative impact on the Group’s
operating results. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is properly managed and
significantly reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
investments, amounts due from a jointly-controlled entity and
associates, investments at fair value through profit or loss and
certain derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23
to the financial statements.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



MBBRME (B)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

22. HERKREEAZREE  42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(48) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REE SRR Liquidity risk

AEBURLEERHESHRETAE The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
REEsEHAR ZIEERHES recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
MTEARSHEE (WEKRE ZER of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
ZEBER TEISEER RS receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

3 =1 N
RERR -

AEBERBTHERE B HIEES The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
SEMREEMPREANSEFEE R continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of banking
E-—F=ZA=+—H AEBILE facilities. At 31 March 2011, the Group had no outstanding
IRITIEE - bank borrowings.
HRIEBER LB YREBHEAS The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
BEE,. AEELREBZERPHER end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
mE: undiscounted payments, is as follows:
rEE —E—
Group 2011
=@EAE
DR DR —FF
BEER =@A +=M@A mE st
3to
Less than less than 1to5
Ondemand 3 months 12 months years Total

FERT FER FERT FER FERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

ENFEZ RN Trade and bills

RESERE payables 19,352 19,064 57 81 38,554
H {th FE 1 BR X Other payables 43,616 = — — 43,616
62,968 19,064 57 81 82,170
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—E——H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2011

4 BEEMETEEERKE  42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(48) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
RBELERE (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
& —E-EF
Group 2010
=@RA=E
DR SR —FEF
FEER =@A +=@A HE et
3to
Less than less than 1105
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EBRNE SRR Trade and bills payables

RERERE 48,626 34,724 134 266 83,750
HtEE(TBRFX  Other payables 22,614 — — — 22,614
fTEemI A Derivative financial

instruments — — 22 13 35
NEBEERT Guarantees given to

BN a8 banks in in connection

BREmMHET with facilities granted

RITZIER to associates 13 — _ _ 13

71,253 34,724 156 279 106,412

RB|EPR LEITHRBERANER
EE - ARAETHEGEZERBER

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

mT undiscounted payments, is as follows:
AT —E—-%
Company 2011
BiE—F et
Over 1 year Total
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE AT B B A B BR AR Due to subsidiaries 197,465 197,465
—2-%F
2010
BB &st
Over 1 year Total
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE A B B8 1t B BR X Due to subsidiaries 195,314 195,314
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42,

BREREERE
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= RBUR

SN L B

ﬁ%l%&%%“%ﬂ@°%%ﬂ@
REEBENNHEERBE (BEMH
““M@%Mﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁng
RMNENESRRUMDEE R
:E——E A=t—-R X&KEHE
AYETERNESH  URELE
EgNREFER 2SR X
EEHIESHNAELRFESEPETE
Z AR o
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BRT ARERBEEZRZ2SETA
BEEEE UREBRBGERNEERAE
BreBRE (REEMEEREEZA
FEEBEE -

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. Certain
trade receivables and payables of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. At 31 March 2011, the Group has
entered into certain forward currency contracts to reduce the
foreign currency exposures on the Group's overseas
investments, however, they did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
Renminbi and Japanese Yen exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

BATEF
25 (B1]) ®m
Aot 288 (Hd) Em*
Change in Increase/
Change in profit/(loss)  (decrease) in
rate before tax equity*
FHET FHET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——-F 2011
EB TR UTER If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:
EREE
AR Renminbi 5 593 12,678
HE Japanese Yen 8 3,928 849
EBITHUTEY If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:
EEHE:
AR #E Renminbi 5 (593) (12,678)
H Japanese Yen 8 (3,928) (849)
—E-FF 2010
EBTEUTE® If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:
EREZE
AR Renminbi 3 1,442 3,452
HE Japanese Yen 8 3,408 1,243
EBITHUTEY If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:
EEAE:
AR Renminbi 3 (1,442) (3,452)
H Japanese Yen 8 (3,408) (1,243)

* FEERITER

*  Excluding accumulated losses
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31 March 2011

42,

43,

44,

E!Q%ELI@%EE BRERBE

EAXER

AEBZEAER  TEEBRDRE
AEEESFELE THEFREZE
AR UXFHEBRRESKRRE
o

AEEEEHEAERE YHELE
MRZEEBELFAL - ERIFAAR
HEXREERK AEERSHABRMS
FREZBE BRREEEARRZ
TR -BE-_ZTE——F=A=+
—HLtEtR-E-ZEF=A=Z+—HL
FE HEE BHXUEFUEZE-

REBURBEE (RBEERNURE
BRE)EFER - FAEEZBRER/ER
BHEERERFEB - REPRKZR
B RWT :

42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the current ratio over one. The current ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

r&E

Group
—E-——F CZE-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
MBEE Current assets 430,908 517,580
FEaE Current liabilities 136,403 175,489
MBI = Current ratio 3.16 2.95
MEHRBREMNH 43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

R-ZE——FOA=-Z+—H x&H
EMHEBINREMNZERZIR
(EEIRBDF-BIAL REAA
< #£40,000,000 7T (£947,000,0005% 7T)
NEEEIRE IR JEitdeks
B A R %7,000,000 7T ( #98,000,0008
) ZHEEHIR - E——FmAC
+—BZAMR -BEEARRER  ZE
BEIRMARIRZXBEARTRK-

BB mR AL E

KPBRER-ZFB-——FRA=ZTN
AEEGSESSHERRETIN-

44,

On 21 April 2011, the Group announced to dispose of a
portion of its construction in progress at the land in Guangzhou
(the “CIP") to an independent party at a consideration of
RMB40,000,000 (approximately HK$47,000,000) when the CIP
completed, with an estimated disposal gain of R\MB7,000,000
(approximately HK$8,000,000), which was detailed in the
announcement dated 21 April 2011. Up to the date of this
report, the CIP and the transaction were not yet completed.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2011.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AMEWIARKEEZTHFRRZ2E P —2I  This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
3 o
ES RESULTS
BEZA=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31st March,
“EFtF -FTN\F -TThE -T-FF -B-—F
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
FET FET FExT FET FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Revenue 1,237,317 940,732 752,605 663,261 622,855
BADER, (B8) Profit/(Loss) before tax 77,781 (16,579) (64,468) (21,990) (31,485)
Bi| Income tax (17,873) 1,684 (279) (12,942) (292)
RERERR,(BE)  Profit/Loss) for the year 59,908 (14,895) (64,747) (34,932) (31,777)
FERER(BR) - Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
ERARREFEA Equity holders of
the Company 59,324 (15,250) (64,673) (34,256) (31,807)
IR Non-controlling interests 584 355 (74) (676) 30
REEERN,(FE)  Profit/Loss) for the year 59,908 (14,895) (64,747) (34,932) (31,777)
EERAR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=BA=+—H
As at 31st March,
—ETLF ZTENFE ZZTThE =—FT-TF —B-——F
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
FERT FET FERT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEHE Total assets 859,351 775,755 687,000 670,086 610,111
EEH8E Total liabilities (250,181) (190,282) (158,414) (175,489) (136,403)
609,170 585,473 528,586 494,597 473,708
ARARREFAEA Equity attributable to
FEAL BR R equity holders of the
Company 607,699 583,617 524,458 491,142 469,967
FEHIER Non-controlling interests 1,471 1,856 4,128 3,455 3,741
609,170 585,473 528,586 494,597 473,708
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TEYEz2HE

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

KEBR-_ZE——F=ZA=+—-BEETE

MEZHBWOT

8 NE

Name/location

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31st March,

2011 are set out below :

B3l
Type

F 1

Lease term

HEM=:

Leasehold properties:

1. BBAEBRFEIR
EAMI AR08
EI13-24RTHR
ith BB P3 R E B U
Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

2. PERERERZEEETH
EhTRZHE
ENEER
ENI¥E
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China

T

Industrial

I

Industrial

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

T

Medium-term lease

4 B

Medium-term lease



GroupSense

B (BB RAE

Group Sense (International) Limited

FHT Y HEER 2R CE T I E S8
6th Floor, Enterprise Place, No.5 Science Park West Avenue,

Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

www.gsl.com.hk
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